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645 OQak Street * Lebanon, Ohio 45036-1634
Phone (513) 932-9470 - Fax (513) 932-5906

December 29, 1999
TO THE CITIZENS AND BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT:

We are pleased to present the seventh Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Lebanon
City School District (District) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. This report was prepared by the
Treasurer's Office, and contains financial statemnents, supplemental statermnents, and statistical information
to provide compiete and full disclosure of all material financial aspects of the District for the 1998-89 fiscal
year.

Responsibility for the accuracy, compleieness, and faimess of the report rests with the District. To the
best of cur knowledge and belief, this report and the enclosed data are accurate in all matetial aspects and
are reported in a manner designed to present faitly the financial position and results of operations of the
various funds and account groups of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the District's financial activities have been included. This report was prepared in
conformance with generally accepted accounting principles as set forth by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB).

This report has been divided into three sections:

The Introductory Section includes this transmittal letter, the GFOA Certificate of Achievement, the
ASBO Certificate of Excellence, the list of principal offictals, and the District’s organizational chart.

The Financial Section includes the unqualified opinion of our independent auditors, Platienburg
and Associates, Inc., the general purpose financial statements, and the combining and individual
fund and account group statements and schedules.

The Siatistical Sactien includes selective financial, economic, and demographic information,
generally presented on a multi-year basis for comparative purposes.

This report includes all funds and account groups of the District. The District provides a full range of
traditional and non-traditional educational programs, services, and facilties. These include elementary
and secondary curriculum offerings at the general, college preparatory, and vocational levels; a broad
range of co-curricular and exira-curricular activities; specral education programs; and facilities and
community recreation facilities.

DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT

The District serves an area of 81.9 square miles in the centrat part of Warren County, encompassing the
City of Lebanon and portions of 3 other cities and 8 townships. lLocated approximately 35 miles northeast
of the City of Cincinnali and 30 miles south of the City of Dayton, Lebanon is a desirable location for many
families who work in either or both metropolitan areas.

During the 1998-89 school year, the District served 4,405 siudents enrolled in 3 elementary scheols, 1
intermediate school, 1 middle school, and 1 high school. This enrollment increased 51 students from the
1997-88 school year. The preliminary enrcliment for the 1999-2000 school year was 4,462, an increase
of 57 students.



ORGANIZATION OF THE DISTRICT

The Board of Education of the Lebanon City Schogf District is a five-member body politic and corporate, as
defined by Section 3313.02, Chio Revised Code. The Board: (1} serves as the taxing authority,
contracting bedy and policy maker; {2) ensures that all other general laws of the State of Qhio are followed
in the expenditure of the District's tax dollars; and (3} approves the annual appropriation resolution.

The current Board members, their terms and years on the Board are:

Mrs. Katherine Poitinger Jan. 1996 - Dec. 1999 3-1/2
Mr. Orville Robinson Jan. 1998 - Dec. 2001 i-1/2
Mr. Walter Davis Jan, 1996 - Dec. 1989 3-1/2
Mr. Norman Dreyer Il Jan. 1998 - Dec. 2001 1-1/2
Mrs. Valerie Reed Jan. 1996 - Dec. 1899 7 -1/2

The Superintendent is the chief executive officer of the District and is responsible directly to the Board for
all operations of the District. Dr. Robert Harvey served as Superintendent from August 1, 1995 untii
retiring effective August 12, 1999 after 31 years in education. Mr. James W. Sears was appointed
Supetintendent effective August 12, 1999.

The Treasurer is the chief financial officer of the District and is directly responsible to the Board for all
financial operations, investments, custody of all District funds and assets, and serves as Secretary o the
Board. Mr. Steven Hinshaw was appointed Treasurer effective March 1, 19968. Mr. Hinshaw resigned
effective August 31, 1989 and Mr. Ryan Slone was named Interim Treasurer September 1, 1999.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The entire Lebanon City Schoo! District continued to experience growth during the 1998-99 year. The
primary township, Turtlecreek, continued io experience large residential construction growth. The
outicok for Turtlecreek Township and the 7 other townships is very positive. In addition to the City of
Lebanon, the townships are also actively pursuing companies 1o develop a growing industrial base.

The economic condition and outlook for the City of Lebanon Is very positive, as can be measured by the
significant new construction expertienced in the past decade. Evidence of this new construction Is the
increase in the number and value of building permits issued since 1990.

i j ion mercial rction

Year Number of Permitg Yalue Number of Permits Value

1980 100 $3,156,492 58 $11,417,957
1991 136 6,022,968 45 3,054,711
1992 192 8,198,299 42 4,575,812
1993 228 10,892,824 32 2,374,595
1994 192 8,573,264 49 22,151,935
1995 284 17,677,894 82 11,362,500
1996 351 - 20,637,230 78 6,356,055
1997 291 19,110,569 80 13,093,658
1998 267 15,298,503 82 16,028,448
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As the table demonstrates, new construction in the City of Lebanon remained strong during 1998. During
1998, 267 new residential units were in various stages of development. Also, commercial development
was strong with the completion of the Kroger Grocery Superstore and continued industrial park growth.

The Golden Lamb Inn, the oidest hotel in Ohio, continued to be the primary aftraction in downtown
L.ebanon. The Inn which dates back to 1803 has a guest list which includes Mark Twain, Charles Dickens,
and ten U.S. Presidents. The Apple Festival and Christmas Festival, featuring the candlelight horse
parade, also are main attractions to Lebanon. All of this added to the growth of Lebanon as a destination
for those seeking good food and entertainment in a rural atmosphere.

The Lebanon community is expected to continue to grow, as more people become aware of its many
conveniences. The City of Lebanon addresses the growth by mainiaining the uniqueness of the
historical downtown while encouraging industrial and commercial development.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

The Board employs 442.23 full-time eguivalent (FTE) employees. Of the Board's current employees,
281.62 FTE are certificated by the Ohio Department of Education serving as classroom teachers,
education specialists, and administrators, all of whom have at least a bachelor's degree and 131 of whom
hold advanced degrees. The number of FTE increased 22.42 from 1997-98, showing the District's
commitment to keeping class sizes as low as possible {o deliver a quality education.

The starting salary for a teacher with a bachelor's degree for the 1998-99 school year was $24,834, and
the maximumm salary for a teacher with a master's degree and 30 years longevity was $54,386. Certificated
teachers and education specialists are represented by the Lebanon Education Association (LEA) which is
a labor organization affiliated with the Ohio Education Association.

The 160.81 FTE classified employees are represented by the OChio Association of Public School
Employees, Chapter 511 (OAPSE) which is a labor organization affiliated with the American Federation of
State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME).

MAJOR INITIATIVES FOR THE YEAR

Current Focus - Report Cards, Strategic Plan

This spring, the state issued a 1999 School District Report Card grading every district in the State of Ohio.
That report card graded each district according to 18 standards, most of which were proficiency test cores
for grades four, six, and nine. According to these standards, Lebanon ranks as a “continuous
improvement” district accomplishing 11 of the 18 standards.

The District is working to address proficiency scores and overall curriculum through the continued
implementation of the five — year review cycle for all courses of study and the Transitions Endorsement
accreditation program which helps teachers target an individual student’s strength and weakness areas.

In addition, the District is working on an aggressive program to reevaluate where we are, where we need to
go and how we need 1o accomplish that task. To that end, school officials and others are working to
identify and address other improvements that are needed. These improvements wil result in
improvements in achievement and learning for our students and have an ultimate, positive impact on
profictency test scores.

Aside from the test scores, the State Report Card also provides a district profile which compares Lebanon
with similar districts in Ohlo and state averages. Lebanon Schools are below average in the amount of

vii



local, state and federal f{unding received while ranking above average in enroliment and median
househoeld income. In addition, the District ranks below average spent on administration costs, building
operations, staff support, pupil support, instruction costs and per pupil spending.

et FoCl R Fal ACCregitaton . .
All six of our schools are currently accredited by the North Central Commission of Schools. The Lebanon
City Schools have been selected to participate in a nationwide pilot program for the transitions model from
the North Central Commission of Schools. This model will encourage our schools to evaluate how our
students make the transition between grades, between schools, and between school to work. By
evaluating our students at this level, we wil be able to begin to educate the students in a way that will
enable them to be successiul in life.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The District’s accounting system is organized on a “fund” basis. Each fund and account group is a distinct,
seif-balancing entity. Records for general governmental operations are maintained on a budgetary basis
system of accounting as prescribed by State statute. Cash basis accounting differs from generally
accepted accounting principles {GAAP) as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB). GAAP, more fully described in the notes to the financial statements, provides for a
modified accrual basis of accounting for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Saervice Fund,
Capital Projects Funds, Expendable Trust Fund, and Agency Funds, and for a full accrual basis for all other
funds.

Internal Controls

The management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure

designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, thefl, or misuse, and to ensure

that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity
with (GAAP). The intemal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,

assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the

cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived from its implementation; and (2) the

valuation of cost and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Federal and State Assistance

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District is responsible for ensuring that an
adequata internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and reguiations
related to those programs. This intemal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management
of the District.

Budgetary Controls

The objective of budgetary conirols is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriation resolution. The leve! of budgetary control {the level at which expenditures cannot legally
exceed the appropriated amount) is established by function and object of expenditure within an individual
fund. The District maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing
hudgetary contral. Unencumbered appropriation balances are reviewed prior to the release of purchase
orders to ensure funds are available to meet the ¢bligation created by the purchase order. Encumbered
amounts at year-end are camried forward to succeeding years and are not re-appropriated. As
demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the District
continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. As is customary for Chio school
districts, the Board of Education amends the District’'s budget at year-end, resulting in zero variances for all
line items in the District’s budgetary financial statements.
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General Fund

The following tabies present the amount of revenues by source, including other financing sources, and
expenditures by function, including other financing uses, for the General Fund for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998 and the percentage of increases and decreases in relation o prior year revenues and

expenditures.

Revenues by Source and Other Financing Sources

Percent Difference Percent

1998 1899 of Tofal from1998  ofChange

Taxes $8,492,586 $9,188,807 44 76% $696,271 8.20%

Intergovernmental 8,753,882 10,654,313 51.80% 900,431 9.23%

Investment 319,569 363,858 1.77% 44,289 13.86%

Tuition and Fees 96,928 161,894 0.79% 64,966 67.03%

Miscellaneous 152,969 158,845 0.77% 5,876 3.84%
Proceeds from _

Sale of Fixed Assels 700 1.614 D.09% 914 130.57%

Total 518,816,644 $20,529,331 100.00% %1,712,687 9.10%

The Dislrict’s 8.10% increase in revenues, including 8.20% increase in taxes and 9.23% increase in
intergovernmental is largely attributed to the new construction and enroliment growth throughout
the district. The 13.86% increase in interest is due to larger cash balances to invest at higher
interest rates. The 67.03% increase in tuition and fees is attributable to tuition from neighboring

districts.
Expenditures by Function and Other Financing Uses
Percent Difference Percent

Instruction: 1998 1998 of Total from1998  ¢iChange

Regular $9,447,680 $10,481,150 52.61% $1,033,470 10.94%

Special 964,384 1,004,530 5.04% 40,148 4.16%

Other 116,920 236,461 1.19% 119,541 102.24%
Support Services: - ,

Pupils 784,923 923,111 4.63% 128,188 16.13%

Instructional Staift 786,587 1,003,996 5.04% 217,409 27.64%

Board of Education 38,333 35,645 0.18% (2,688) {7.01)%

Administration 1,515,813 1,793,433 9.00% 277,620 18.32%

Fiscal 482,323 534,601 2.68% 52,278 10.84%

Business 132,144 128,993 0.65% {3,151) 2.38%

Operation and Maintenance

of Plant 1,493,647 1,551,876 7.79% 58,229 3.90%

Pupil Transportation 1,361,744 1,457,646 7.32% 95,802 7.04%

Central 91,147 122,304 0.61% 31,157 34.18%
Onperation of

Nan-instructional Services 5,952 981 0.01% (4,961) (83.35Y%

Extracurricular Activities 349,774 379,515 1.90% 29,741 8.50%
Facilities Acquisiiion

and Construction Services 1,350 0 0.00% (1,350)  (100.00)%
Operating Transfers Out 256,964 269.780 1.35% ... 12,818 - 4.899%
Total $17,839,685 $19,924,032 100.00%  $2,084,347 11.68%




The District's 11.88% increase in expenditures, including 10.94% increase in regular instruction
and 27.64% increase in support services instructional staff is due to the continuing student
enrollment growth of the District and the spending of money to meet the additional needs.
Additional personnel were hired in all areas to address the needs to continue to provide a quality
education fo the students. The 102.24% increase in other instruction is primarily tuition pald to
other districts for students who live in Lebanon, but attend other districts. Operating transfers out
are included in this presentation because of the importance of the line item. These transfers
primarily represent debt service payments.

Special Hevenug Funds

Special Revenue Funds account for funds that derive revenue primarily from grants and entitlemenis
restricted by law to expenditures for specific purposes. The fund balance for all Special Revenue Funds
decreased $85,683 during the 1999 fiscal year.

Capital Projects Funds account for the purchase of equipment and the financing of major improvement
projects. The Capital Projects Funds ended the 1999 fiscal year with a fund balance of $674,550.

The District's two Enterprise Funds are the Food Service Fund and the Uniform School Supplies Fund.
These funds are similar in nature to profit-making activities found in the private sector and are managed
accordingly. The District’s Enterprise Funds operated in 1999 with $1,245,458 in total revenues and
transfers in and recorded a net income of $3,0086.

The District's two Internal Service Funds are the Employee Benefits Self-lnsurance Fund and the Warren
Courty Juvenile Detention Center Fund. In fiscal year 1899, these programs operated at a $41,307
combined profit.

Debt Administrati ‘ .

The District has three debt issues outstanding at June 30, 1999. The first issue is $7,375,000 of general

obligation bonds issued for the construction of a new grades 4-5 elementary building and an 8-classroom

addition to the high school. The bonds were issued on August 15, 1892 at an interest rate of 4.65%.

The amount of outstanding bonds at June 30, 1899 is $2,370,000. This issue wil be retired on
December 1, 2000.

The second issue is a $1,440,000 general obligation bond issued for renovations made under the House
Bill 264 program. The bonds were issued on May 15, 1995 at an interest rate of 5.25%. The amount of
outstanding bonds at June 30, 1982 is $1,080,000. This issue will be retired on December 1, 2005.

The third issue is a $280,000 general obligation bond issued for school bus purchases. The bonds were
issued on June 1, 1997 at an interest rate of 5.20%. The amount of outstanding bonds at June 30, 1999
is $203,000. This issue will be retired on April 15, 2003.

The District operates a cash management program designed io provide safety, liquidity, and yield, in that
order. Funds are invested in overnight savings accounts, certificates of deposit, in the Ohic State
Treasurer's Investment Pool (Star Chio), or in United States Govemment bilis or notes. The amount of
investment income in fiscal year 1999 for alf District funds was $507,860. A more detailed description of
the District’s investment functions is provided in Note 4 to the financial staterments.



Risk Management

The District maintains protection for its asseis and employees through a comprehensive insurance
program. Insurance policies for vehicle fleet liability, general liability, property loss, and boiler and
machinery coverage are purchased from insurance companies licensed to do business In the State of
Ohio. The maximurn deductible amount for these coverages is $500 per loss incurred.

The District pays the State Workers’ Compensation Systern a premium based on a rate per $100 of
salaries. This rate is calculated based on accident history and administrative costs. The District joined a
group rating prograrm with other schools in southwestern Chio in an effort to control these costs.

The District has elected to provide employee medical/surgical and dental benefits through a self-
insurance program. A third-party administrator, Harrington Benefit Services located in Dayton, Ohio,
reviews and pays all claims. Michael! Insurance Planning serves as consultant to the District in selecting the
third-party administrator and seiting premium levels and coverage levels. The employees share the cost
of the monthly premium with the Board, and the premium shared cost vaies depending on the terms of
the union contract.

OTHER INFORMATION

The State of Ohio requires an annual audit by either the Auditor of Stale or by an independent pubiic
accounting firm. Plattenburg and Associates, Inc. conducted the District's audit for fiscal year 1999. The
Auditor’'s report on the District’s general purpose financial statements, and combining and individual fund
statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this repont.

Awards :

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA} awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting (Certificate of Achievement) to the District
for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998. The Ceriificate of
Achievement Is the highest form of recognition for excellence in state and local government reporting,
and the award was the fifth for the District. In order to be awarded a Cerlificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting a govemmental unit must publish a Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report, the contents of which are easily readable, efficiently organized, and conform to program
standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements. The District believes our curtent report conforms to the Certificate of Achievement program
requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for a certificate.

The Association of School Business Officials international (ASBO) awarded a Certificate of Excelience on
Financial Reporting for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 to the District. The award was the sixth for the
District. The award cetifies that the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998 substantially conforms to the principles and standards of financial reporting as
recommended and adopted by the Association of School Business Officials. This award is granted only
after extensive review of the report by an expert panel of cettified public accountants and practicing
school business officials. The District believes our current repott conforms to the ASBO's principles and
standards, and we are submitting it to ASBO 1o determine its efigibility for a certificate.

The GFOA also awarded an Award for Outstanding Achievernent in Popular Annual Financial Reporting for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 to the District. The award is a prestigious national award recognizing
conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government popular reports. In
fact, the District is the first school district in Ohio and second district in the nation to receive the award.
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STATE OF OHIO
{JFFICE OF THE AUDITOR

Jmv PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE

Board of Education
Lebanon City School District

35 North Fourth Street, 1* Floor
Columbus, Ohio 43215

Telephone 614-466-4514

8002830370
Facsimile 614-728-7358

We have reviewed the Independent Auditor's Report of the Lebanon City School District, Warren
County, prepared by Plattenburg & Associates, Inc., for the audit period July 1, 1998 to June 30,
1999. Based upon this review, we have accepted these reports in lieu of the audit required by
Section 117.11, Revised Code. The Auditor of State did not audit the accompanying financial
statements and, accordingly, we are unable to express, and do not express an opinion on them.

Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected by
the Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the Auditor
of State, regulations and grant requirements. The Lebanon City School District is responsible for

compliance with these laws and regulations.

Yanuary 12, 2000



PLATTENBURG & ASSOCIATES, INC./CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

8280 MONTGOMERY ROAD, SUITE 210 / CINCINNATI, OH 45236 « (513) 891-2722 « FAX (513) 891-2760
2211 SOUTH DIE AVENUE / DAYTON, OH 45409 » (937) 224-1505 » FAX (937) 294-1507

Indepe nts' or

December 21, 1999

Board of Education
Lebanon City School District
Lebanon, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the Lebanon
City School District (the District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, as listed in
the table of contents. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of
the District's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general
purpose financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general
purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall general purpose financial statements presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all matenial respects, the financial position of the District, as of June 30, 1999, and the
results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types and non-
expendable trust fund for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles.

In accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated
December 21, 1999 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants.



Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose
financial statements taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account
group financial statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose
financial statements of the District. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole.

As described in the notes to the accompanying general purpose financial statements, the
District changed its method of accounting for deferred compensation to conform with
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 32.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this
report and therefore express no opinion thereon.

lattenburg & @‘sociates, Inc.
Certified Public Accountants



GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following general purpose financial statements, along with notes to general
purpose financial statements, present an overview of the District's financial position at
June 30, 1999 and the results of operations and cash flows of its proprietary and non-
expendabie trust funds for the year then ended.




LEBANCN CITY SCHOOCL DISTRICT, OHIQ
GOMBINED BALANCE SHEET

ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
AS OF JUNE 30, 1999

Assels and Othar Cebits:
Assels:

Equity in Pooled Cash and
Cash Equivalants
Rastricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables:
Texes
Accounts
Intergovernmental
Accrued Interest
Due From Other Funds
Prepaid lems
Inveatery Held for Resale
Materials and Supplies Inventery
Fixed Assats (Nat, wherg applicable,
of Accumulatad Depreciation)

Other Dabits:

Amount Available in Dabt Servics Fund for
Retirement of General Obligation Bonds

Ameount to be Providad from
General Government Resources

Total Assats and Other Debits

Lizbilities, Fund Equity and Other Credits:

Liabiiities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages

Compansated Absences Payable
Due to Other Funds
Intergovernmantal Payable
Deferred Revenue

Ungistributed Monies

Due lo Students

Claims Payable

Geraral Cbligation Bonds Payable

Total Liabilities

Fund Equity and Other Credits:

Conwibuted Capital
Investment in General Fixad Assets
Retained Earnings:
Unreserved {Deficit}
Fund Balance:
Resarved for Peoperty Tax Advances
Reserved for Set-aside
Reserved for Encumbrances
Reserved for Prepaid ltams
Reserved for Contridutions
Unreservad;
Undesignated

Total Fund Equity and Qther Credits

Total Liabilities, Fund Eguity and Other Credits

--------- semmsmcmmesesmmeeessanae  Jovernmental  Fund  Types  seemeeeea
Spacial Capital

General Revenue Debt Service Projects
$5,311.558 §515.218 $2,118B,288 $664,804
245,882 ) 0 0 o
10,034,436 0 587,587 779,343
5,982 0 o] 0
0 40,948 o] 0
ae0 0 o] 0
0 D [y} 0]
54,642 0 o 0
0 0 1] 0
o] 0 "] 0
o] 0 o} 0
Q [s] o} 1]
Q 0 o a
$15,653,467 $568,166 $2,705,896 $1,444,147
$75,471 $28,432 $c 539,235
1,568,257 54,4581 Q Q
104,618 s [+ 0
02,245 1,736 ¢] 0
392,989 14,881 Q 9
9,443,229 v} 515,272 730,303
¢ ] [+] 0
o [s] 0 Q
[¢] Q Q 4]
¢ Q 0 0
11,687,809 99,500 515,272 769,597
¢ [¢] o} o]
c Q Q 0
[+ Q [4] 0
591,207 [+} 72,325 40,040
245,992 ] 0 0
266,363 116,977 0 280,671
54,642 Q o] 0
] o] 0 0
2,807,454 339,689 2,118,299 334,839
3,965,658 ‘456,666 2,180,624 674,550
$15,653,467 $556,166 $2,705,898 $1,444,147

See accompanying notes to the paneral purpose financial statements



Fiduciary

---------- Proprietary Fund Types - Fund Types = --sessveeeme—=  AcCQUnl  Groups  ee-ceemes-ea-
General General Totals
internal Trust and Fixed Long-Term {Memorandum
Enierprise Service Agency Assets Obligations Cnly}
$35,929 $1.023,778 $102,064 30 $0 $9,772.637
0 0 ¢ o Q 245,992
a 0 [+] 0 4] 11,401,376
' 0 0 o 0 o 5,982
1] 5,673 Q 0 Q0 48,621
4] 0 401 0 ko] 1,281
0 118,143 0 1] o} 118,143
o 0 o] Q [+} 54,642
17,024 o] o 0 [} 17,024
4,956 0 o} a Q 4,856
62,714 1,749 a 21,212,687 0 21,277,180
o 0 ] o 2,180,624 2,190,624
ol o] 0 o] 3,030,794 3,030,784
$121,623 £1,149,343 $102.455 $21,212,687 $5.221,418 $48,187,202
$23,749 $0 50 30 $0 $166,937
0 17,976 a 0 Q 1,641,684
32,756 o Q 0 1,409,588 1,546,862
11,486 2,878 [+] 0 o] 118,143
38,782 4,176 ¢} 0 158,830 609,677
2,210 0 o] 0 0 10,698,014
1] 0 5,741 o] 0 5,741
a 0 65,986 s} 0 65,986
[+] 224,449 o 0 0 224,449
s} 0 4] ¢ 3,653,000 3,653,000
115,993 249,277 71,727 0 5221.418 18,730,593
29,439 ] 0 a 0 29,439
Q ¢ 0 21,212,687 i} 21,212,887
(23.808) 900,066 o] ¢ Q 876,257
[} o] 0 o] +] Ti2.572
o} Q o] 0 o] 245,992
0 Q G 0 o] 874,011
0 [¢] o 0 [+} 54,642
0 0 2,312 0 o} 9,312
a 0 21,416 0 o] 5,621,697
5,830 900,066 30,728 21,212,887 ja] 28,436,609
$121.623 $1.149,343 §102,455 $21.212.687 $5.221,418 548,187,2¢




LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Revenues:

Taxes
Intergovemmenial
Investment

‘Tuition and Fees
Extracurricular Activities
Gifts and Donations
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues
Expendituras:

Current:
Instruction:
Regular
Spedcial
Other
Support Services:
Pupils
Instructional Staff
Board of Education
Administration
Fiscal
Business
Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Pupil Transportation
Central
Operation of Non-Instructional Services
Extracurricutar Activities
Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Other Uses of Funds:

Pass-through Payments
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets
Refund of Prior Year Receipts

Operating Transfers - in

Operating Transfers - Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over (Under) Expenditurss
and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balancses at June 30, 1998

Fund Balances at June 30, 1999

See accompanying notes 1o the general purpose financtal statements

Governmental Fund Types

Special Capitat

General Revenueg Debt Service Projects
$9,188,807 $0 $1,296,830 $654,205
10,654,313 762,466 165,680 466,313
383,858 1,308 95,178 17,078
161,894 20,844 0 0
0 454,247 o) 0
0 59,026 0 0
153,845 32,086 0 (o}
20,527,717 1,329,885 1,567,688 1,137,596
10,481,150 334,076 0 368,968
1,004,530 385,230 o] 0
236,461 0 0 0
923,111 51,624 0 o
1,003,896 74,408 0 4]
35,645 0 o] 0
1,793,433 23,275 2,208 1,309
534,801 0 19,783 9,510
128,993 0 0 o
1,651,876 0 0 63,091
1,457,646 0 o] [+]
122,304 36,976 o} 4,204
991 127,718 0 0
379,515 381,485 0 0
0 48 0 267,209
0 0 1,264,000 0
g Q 208,718 4]
Q 785 Q Q
19,654,252 1,415,638 1,494,707 714,381
873,465 (85,683} 62,981 423,215
1,614 0 0 0
[4] 4] 4] 0
0 0 242,055 0
{269,780} o} 0 o]
{268,166) 0 242,055 [»;
605,299 (85,683) 306,038 423,215
3,360,359 542,349 1,885,588 251,335
$3,965,658 $456,666 $2,190,624 $€74,550




Fiduciary
==~ Fund Type ——

Expendable
Trust

Totals
{Memorandum
Only)

o8

o
a
[of=Ne Kol

$11,130,842
12,048,772
477,464
182,738
454,247
65,676
190,911

=]
[+:]
w0
EY

24,559,650

o
(2]
oo o8oooovoocsocos ocoo

o

11,184,194
1,388,760
236,461

974,735
1,078,404
35,645
1,820,223
563,894
128,993
1,614,967
1,467,645
163,577
128,709
769,380
267,257

1,264,000
208,718

785

23,287,358

(1,686}

1,272,292

1,614

0
242,055
{269,780)

ol QoOQ O

(286,111}

(1,688)
3,557

1,246,181
6,043,188

$1,871

$7,289,369




LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS}

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1593

B e S R —~Gansral

Revisaed
Budget Actual
Revanues:
Taxes $9,212,198 $9,212,193
Intergovernmantal 10,656,813 10,656,813
Interest 363,045 383,045
Tuition and Fess 163,357 163,357
Extracurricular Activities 4] 0
Gifts and Donations 0 o
Migcellanecus 110,035 110,035
Total Revenues 20,505,448 20,595,5'48
Exganditures: ’ N
Currant:
Instruction:
Regular 10,527,021 10,527,021
Special 1,001,573 1,001,573
Other 239,637 239,837
Support Services:
Pupils 908,672 908,672
Instructional Staft 1,005,560 1,008,560
Board of Education 34,079 34,079
Administration 1,767,005 1,767,005
Fiscal 54B.832 548,832
Business 126,101 126,101
Operation and Malntenance of Plant 1,614,224 1,674,224
Pupil Transportation 1,509,685 1,509,885
Central 137,208 157,209
Operation ot Non-Insiructlonal Sarvices 1.3541 1,541
Extracurricular Activities 378.83¢ 378,530
Facilities Acquisition and Censtruction Services o 0
Gabt Servica:
Principal Ratirement 0 0
Interest and Fiscal Charges Q 0
Other Uses of Funds:
Pass-through Payments 0 o]
Totai Expenditures 19,799,769 19,799,769
Excess (Dafiziancy) of Revenues '
Cver (Under) Expendituras 705,879 705,679
Other Finanting Sources {Uses):
Proceeds from Sele of Fixed Assels 1,814 1,614
Refund of Prior Year Expenditures 48,248 40,248
Refund of Pricr Year Receipts [+} 3}
Advances - In 130,825 130,825
Advancas - Qut 2] [}
Cperating Transfers - 1n 0 0
Operating Transfers - Out {269.78¢} {268,780}
Tetal Other Financing Sources (Uses] (88,085j
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other Finanging Uses 617,584 617,584
Fynd Balances at June 30, 1998 4,189,408 4,199,406
Prior Year Encumbrances Approprizted 412,305 412,305
Fund Balances at June 30, 1999 §5,226,295 $5,229,295

Governmental Fund Types -
Fund-- Special Haventue Fundg=---«--
Verianca Variance
Favorabla Ravised Favorable
(Unfavorable) Budge! Actual {Unfavorable}

S0 $0 50 [1e]
4] T43,738 743,796 o
o 1,306 1,308 Qo
0 20,842 20,844 0
o 454,247 454,247 s}
o 59,0286 59,025 ¢
o] 26,190 26.190 0
4] 1,305,409 1,305,408 o
v} 355,268 355,269 o
o 350,324 380,324 o)
0 e] 0 0
[¢] 52,532 52,532 o}
0 80,354 80,394 o}
] 0 o i)
[+ 24,097 24 087 o]
0 0 o o]
Q o} 0 0
] Is) o] o}
o] [+] o 0
2] 50,637 50,637 2]
Q 152,537 152,537 0
[ 448,747 448,747 [+
o] 43 a8 0
0 0 o] o]
8] a a g
o T35 785 o}
o] 1,545,370 1,545,370 o
g {239,961) {239,961) ¢]
o} o] o o}
0 5,878 5,876 0
o {9.592) {9,592) 8]
0 [} o o]
2} o} 0 s}
0 0 [+] o]
o 4] & o
] (3,716} (3,718) a
0 {243.677) {243,677) 0
Q £34,366 534,366 o]
Q 80,922 80,922 0
$0 $371.811 $371,611 £0

See accompanylng notas lo the general purpese financlal statements



Govasrnmaental Fund Ty¥opes

----- peemsromeeeeeDgbt  Sgrvice  Fund--ssesssess ceseeeemeeeo..-Capital | Projects
Variance Variance
Revised Favorabla Revisad Faverable

Budget Actual {Untavcrable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$1,329.208 $1.328.209 50 $629,507 $6833,507 50
165,679 165,679 1] 466,313 468,313 a
106,612 106,612 3] 17,078 17,078 T o]
[} 0 ] [+ 0 Q

1] 0 4] [ 0 )

o 0 0 Q 0 o

s} 0 o] ¢ 0 Q
1,601,5¢0 1,601,500 0 1,122,898 1,122,898 0
o] v} +] 416,650 416,650 Q

[+ o 0 Q s} Q

v} Ja] ] [+] Ju] 0

0 [} 0 4] 0 Q

0 0 o} o o] 0

bl 0 2] c 0 o]

2.205 2,208 1+ 1,309 1,308 [}
19.783 19,783 [ 2,510 9.810 o}

bl ¥ V] 0 v} o

0 [+ Q 112,082 112,092 o]

0 [} o] 0 o] [}

0 0 4] 4,548 4,548 Q

Qo 0 a o [} Q

o] Q o] o] 0 o

o a ] 534,803 534,803 o}
1,264.000 1,264,000 0 o’ 0 c
208,718 208,718 [ o] [} ]
[¢] 0 1] o} [+] o]
1,494,708 1.494,706 i} 1,078,712 . 3.078.712 0
106,794 106,794 0 44,186 44,186 ]
o] 4] 0 [+] Q [«

0 0 0 +] 0 o]

0 ] [+ 0 0 o]

0 0 0. s} 4] [o]

bl o] [} {130,825) {130,825) [}
242,055 242,055 o 0 Qo 4]
Q 0 [+] 0 Q Q
242,055 242,055 [« {130.825) (130,325) o
348,849 348,848 o] {86,530) (B6.639) ]
1,769,450 1,769,450 Q 406,138 406,138 o
[¢] o} [ 35.480 35,480 a
$2,118,29% $2,118,299 %0 $354,979 $354,97% $0
Continued



LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIG

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHARNGES IN
FUND BALANGES - BUDGET AND AGTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS}
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1989 ’

(CONTINUED)
----- Expendable Trust! Funds - ememmzmmmmmnaan
Variance
Revised Favcrable Revised
Sudget Actual {Uniavorable) Budget
Ravenuas:
Taxes 50 %0 $0 $11.180.014
intergovernmental o] o] ¢ 12,032,601
Interast 56 56 _ 0 488,097
Tuition and Fees 1] 0 0 184,201
Extracurricular Activities s} [¢] s} 454,247
Gifts and Denations 6,650 6.650 0 85,876
Miscellanaous [+] o] 0 136,225
Total Revenuaes 6,708 8,706 0 24,541,861
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Ragular 1] a 0 11,298,940
Special ) g ) 1,381,897
Other 0 0 ] 239,637
Support Services:
Pupils o] 0 Q 261,204
Instructional Staff s} 0 o] 1,085,854
Beard of Education 3] 0 Q 34,079
Administration 0 0 Q 1,704,818
Fiscal a] 0 o} §78B,125
Business 0 D o} 126,101
Qperaticn and Maintenance of Plant o] 0 Q 1,726,316
Pupil Transportation 0 0 ¢} 1,509,685
Central Q2 8] [+] 192,394

Gperation of Nen-Instructional Sarvices 0 D o] 154,078

Extracurricular Activities 8,380 8,380 Q 835,757
Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services o] 0 o] 534,651
Cabt Service:

Principal Retirament o 0 o] 1,264,000

Interest and Fiscal Charges 0 0 o] 208,718
Other Uses aof Funds:

Pass-through Paymants 0 Q L] 78%
Total Expenditures 8,380 8,380 0 23,928,937
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenyas
Qver (Under) Expendituras (1,674} (1,674) o 615,024
Qther Financing Sources (Uses):

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assels 0 Q ] 1.614
Refund of Prior Year Expenditures o 0 ol 55,122
Refund of Prior Year Receipls 0 0 o} (9,592}
Advancas - In . 0 0 4] 130,825
Advances - Out o] o o] (130,825}
Cperating Transfers - In 0 Qo o] 242,055
Oparating Transfers - Cut 0 0 o] (269,780}
Total Other Financing Scurces (Uses) 0 Q0 o 19,4139
Excess (Deficiency} of Pevenues and Other

Firancing Sources Over (Under) Expenditures )
ang Other Financing Uses (1,874) (1,674} [+] 634,443
Fund Balances at June 30, 1998 3,516 3,518 [} 6,912,876
Prior Year Encumbrances Apprepriated 0 0 [+ 528,707
Fund Balances at June 30, 199% $1,B42 £1.842 0 $8,076,026

Totals
(Mamorandum  Only) ------
Variance
Favorable
{Unfavorabie)

Actua!

$11,180,814
12,032,601
488,007
184,201
454,247
65,676
136,225

L,
o

(= == = ) I v ]

T
4

11,298,040
1,301,897
238,637

o000

961,204
1,085,954
34,079
1,794,618
578,125
125,101
1,726,316
1,509,685
192,384
154,078
835,787
534,851

O0oCOo0OO0000000D0C

1,264,000
2ce.7i8

oo

23,926,937 ¢

615,024 [+

P

1,614 o
55,122 ¢
{8,692) o
130,425 o
(130,825) ¢
242,056 o
{269.780) o
¢

634,443 o]
6,812,876 0
528,707 Q

$8,076,026 $0

Se¢ accompanying notes to the general purpose financial statements
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCE

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Fiduciary
Proprietary Fund Types Fund Type
- - Totals
Internal Nonexpendable {Memorandum
Enterprise Service Trust Only}

Operating Revenues:

Sales $963,428 80 %0 $963,428
Tuition 1] 202,226 I+ 202,228
Charges for Services Q 1,400,224 ; 1,400,224
investment 0 4] 1,125 1,125
Total Operating Revenues 963,428 1,602,450 1,125 2,567,003
Operating Expenses:

Salarigs 347,626 100,499 o 448,125
Fringe Benefits 117,674 83,178 g 180,852
Purchased Services 95,601 172,233 0 267,834
Materials ang Supplies 61,091 5,169 0 66,260
Cost of Sales 815,288 0 Q 615,288
Depreciation 5,174 87 0 5,281
Claims 0 1,249,248 0 1,249,248
Other Operating Expenses 0 1] 850 850
Total Operating Expenses 1,242,452 1,580,414 850 2,833,716
Cperating Income (Loss) (279,024) 12,038 275 (266,713)
Non-Operating Revenues:

Federal Donated Commadities 45,656 Q Q 45,858
Cperating Grants 208,649 0 0 208,649
Investment 0 29,271 0 29,271
Total Nen-Operating Revenues 254,305 28,271 4] 283,576
Net Income (Logs) Before Operating Transfers (24,719} 41,307 275 16,863
Operating Transfers - In 27,725 1} o] 27,725
Net Income {Loss) 3,006 41,307 275 44,588
Retained Eamings/Fund Balance

at June 30, 1993 (26.815) 858,759 28,582 860,528
Retained Earmings (Deficit)y/Fund Balance

at June 30, 1999 $800,068 $28,857 $205,114

{$23,809)

See accompanying notes to the general purpose financial statements
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LEBANCN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1993 .

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash Recelved from Customers

Cash Received from Tuition Payments

Cash Received from Other Operations

Cash Payments to Emplayees for Services

Cash Payments for Employee Benefits

Cash Payments for Claims

Cash Payments for Purchased Services

Cash Payments for Materials and Supplies

Cash Payments for Other Expenses

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Qperating Activities
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:

Operating Grants Received
Operating Transters - In

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Payments for Capitai Acquisitions

Net Cash (Used for) Capital and Related Financing Aclivities
Cash Flows from lnvesting Activities:

Investment Revenue

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30, 1998

Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30, 1999

12

Fiduciary
Proprietary Fund Types Fund Type
Totals
Internal Nonexpendable {Memorandum
Enterprise Service Trust Only}

$963.,428 $0 50 $963,428

G 245,248 0 246,248

o 1,408,852 a 1,408,652
(351,491) (120,372} 0 (471,863)
(122,848) {44,701} o] (167,549}
0 (1,224,471) 0 (1,224,471}
(528,738) {172,233) 0 (700,969)
(204,247) (5,169) Q {209,416)
o] o} {850) (&s0Q)
{243,894) 85,954 {850) (158,790)

208,650 Q 0 208,650
27,725 0 o} 27,725
236,375 o} 4} 236,375
v} {1,836) 8] {1,838}
0 (1,8386) 0 {1,8386)

0 28,271 1,209 30,480

[o] 29,271 1,209 30,480

{7.519) 113,389 355 106.229
44,448 910,389 28,126 982,963
$36.,928 $1.023,778 $28,485 $1,089,192
Cantinued



LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS .

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND NONEXPENDABLE TAUST FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

(CONTINUED}

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:

Qperating income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income {Loss) to
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:

Depreciation

Interest Received in Nonexpendable Trust Funds

Donated Commodities Usad During the Year

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
{increase)/Decrease in Intergovernmental Receivable
(Increase)/Decrease in Accrued Interest Receivable
(Increase)/Decrease in Due From Other Funds
{Increase)/Decrease in Inventory Held for Rasale
{Increase)/Decrease in Materials and Supplies Inventory
Increase/{Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase/(Decrease) in Accrued Wages
Increase/(Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable
Increase/{Decrease) in Deferred Revenue
Increase/(Decrease) in Due to Other Funds
Increase/(Decrease) in Intergovernmental Payable
Increase/(Decrease} in Claims Payable

Total Adjustrments

Net Cash Provided by (Used for} Operating Activities

Reconciliation of Nonexpendabie Trust Funds to Balance Sheet:
Cash and Cash Equivalenis - All Fiduciary Funds
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Expendable Trust and Agency Funds

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Nonexpendable Trust Funds

See accompanying notes to the general purpose financial statements
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Fiduciary
Proprietary Fund Types Fund Type
Totals
Internal Nonexpendable (Memgrandum
Enterprise Service Trust Only)
($279,024) $12,035 $275 ($266,713)
5,174 87 Q 5,261
a 0 (1,208} (1.209)
45,656 o) ¢ 45,656
0 44,022 0 44,022
0 0 84 84
0 6,428 0 6,428
(1,2589) o 0 (1,259)
1,100 o 0 1,100
(5,193) M) o] (5,193)
o] {1,897) 0 (1,897)
(3,865) v} 0 (3,8865)
{1,309) 0 0 (1,309)
2,692 441 0 3,133
{7,868) B0 o] (7,808)
0 24,777 0 24,777
35,130 73,918 (1,125) 107,923
(5243,894) $85,954 {$850) ($158,790)
$102,054
(73,569)
$28,485
T S o A S



LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, CHIQ

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN
FUND EQUITY - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASLS)
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND NONEXFENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999 e

e EtECPYISE Funds

Proprietary Fund Types

Internal Service Funds

Variance Variance

Revised Favorable Revised Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Sales $963,423 $963,428 $0 0 $0 30
Tuition o] 0 [+] 246,248 246,248 [+]
Charges for Services o] 0 0 1,406,191 1,406,191 [+]
Interest o] 0 [#] 29,27 29,271 [+}
Operating Grants 208,648 208,649 o 0 0 o
Refurd of Prior Year Expanses o] 0 0 451 461 v
Total Revenues 1,172,077 1,172,077 0 1,682,171 1.682,171 o
Expenses:
Salaries 351,497 351,491 o] 120,372 120,372 o
Fringe Benefils 122,848 i2z,848 Q 44,701 44,701 a
Purchased Services 528,736 528,736 o] 172,233 172,233 0
Materials and Supplies 224 417 224,417 o} 4,693 4,693 0
Capital Qutlay 0 0 0 2,312 2,312 ]
Qther 0 [¢] 0 1,224,471 1,224,471 0
Total Expenses 1,227,492 1,227,492 o] 1,568,782 1,568,782 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Qver
(Under} Expenses (55.415) (55,415) o] 113,388 113,389 0
Operating Transfers - in 27,725 27,725 Q ] 0 o
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Operating Transfers Over (Under) Expenses (27.690) (27,600) 0 113.389 113,389 o]
Fund Equity at June 30, 1998 28,601 28,601 0 910,339 910,389 o)
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 15,847 15,847 Q s} aQ o}
Fund Equity at June 30, 1999 $16,758 $16,758 $0 $1,023,778 $1,023,778 $0

See accompanying notes to the general purpose financial statements
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—smmemeemem FiduGiary Fund Type =-

Tatals

Nonexpendable Trust Funds -—-er--w- wrrsmmsnseeme— (Memorandum Qnly} mes=ssermocise.
Varlance Variance
Hevised Favorable Ravised Favorzble

Budget Actual (Unfavarable) Budget Actual {Untavorable)
54 30 30 $563,428 5963,428 $0
o o] o] 248,248 245,248 a
0 0 0 1,406,191 1,406,191 0
1,209 1,209 Q 30,480 30,480 0
0 Q 0 208,849 208,649 0
4] a 0 461 461 G
1,209 1.209 o} 2,855,457 2,855,457 0
8] o 0 471,863 471,883 [}
] o} 4] 167,549 167,549 o
o} 0 0 700,969 700,968 0
Q 4] a 229,110 229,110 o}
4] ¢ 4} 2,312 2,312 0
850 B50 o} 1,225,321 1,225,321 o}
B850 850 o 2,797,124 2,797,124 o]
359 359 Q 58,332 58,333 0
0 0 [} 27,725 27,725 0
358 359 c 86,058 88,058 Q
28,128 28,126 o] 967,116 967,116 0
o} 0 Q 15,847 15,847 [}
$28,485 $25,485 $0_ $1,069,021 §1,062,021 50
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LEBANON CITY SCHOQOL DISTRICT, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1899

NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHOOL

The Lebanon City School District (District) was originally chartered in 1851 by the Chio State Legislature. In 1853,
State Laws were enacted to create local Boards of Education. Today, the District operates under current standards
prescribed by the Ohio State Board of Education as prowded in Division {D) of Section 3301.07 and Section 119.01 of
the Ohio Revised Code.

The District operates under a locally-elected five member Board form of government and provides educational
setvices as authorized by its charter or further mandated by state and/or federal agencies. This Board controls the
District’s six instructional facilities, staffed by 160.6 FTE classified personnel and 281.6 FTE certificated teaching
and administrative personnel to provide services to students and other community members.

In terms of enrollment, the District is the 2nd largest in Warren County among 8 districts and 87th largest in ther“State
of Chio among 611 districts. It currently operates three elementary schools (K-3), one intermediate school {4-5), one
middie school (6-8), and one high school (9-12).

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of these financial statements are summarized below.
These policies conform with generally accepted accounting pringiples {(GAAP) for local govemmental units
prescribed in the statements issued by the Govemmenta! Accounting Standards Board (GASB} and other recognized
authoritative sources.

A.  TheReporiing Entity

The reporting entity is composed of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that
are included to ensure that the financial statements of the District are not misleading. The primary
govermnment consists of all funds, departments, boards, and agencies that are not legally separate from the
District. For Lebanon City Schoo! District, this includes general operations, food service, preschool and
student-related activities of the District.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable. The
District is financially accountable for an organization if the District appoinis a voting majority of the
otganization's governing board and (1) the Distrlct is able to significantly influence the programs or services
performed or provided by the organization; or (2) the District is legally entitled to or can otherwise access
the organization’'s resources; the District is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the responsibility to
finance the deficits of, or provide financial suppert to, the organization; or the District is obligated for the
debt of the organization. Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the
District in that the District approves the budget, the issuance of debt or the levying of taxes. The District
identified no component units that meet this criteria.

The District is a participating member of the Southwestern Ohic Computer Assoctation (SWOCA), a three-
county consortium of schoo! districts. SWOCA provides data processing services needed by participating
school districts. The Butler County Joint Vocational Schoot District serves as the fiscal agent. This is a
jointly-governed organization and the District's participation is discussed in Note 15.

The District is not involved in the budgeting or management of the Warren County Career Center. The school
district is a separate boedy politic and corporate, established by the Ohio Revised Code. This is a jointly -
govemed organization and the District’s participation is discussed in Note 15.

16



LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 199¢%

i

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B.

Basis of P tion - Fund / .

The District uses funds and account groups to report on its financial pesition and the results of its
operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management
by segregating transactions related to certain District functions or activities.

A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and
other financial resources, together with all related iiabilities and residual equities or balances, and changes
therein, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain
objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations.

An account group is a financial reporting device designed io provide accountability for certain assets and
liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because they do not direcily affect net expendable avaifable
resoLrces.

For financial statement presentation purposes, the various funds of the District are grouped as follows:

Sovernmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the District are financed. The
acquisition, use, and balances of the District's expendable financial resources and the related current
liabilities, except those accounted for in proprietary or fiduciary funds, are accounted for through
governmental funds. The governmental fund category includes:

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund;

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricied to
expenditure for specified purposes;

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs; and

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary
funds and trust funds).

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for the District’s ongoing activities which are similar to those found in
the private sector. All assets, fiabilities, equities, revenues, expenses, and transfers relating to the
District’s business and guasi-business activities, where net income and capital maintenance are measured,
are accounted for through proprietary funds.

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the Board of Education is
that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the
general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered pramarily through user charges
or where the Board of Education has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned,
expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability, or other purposes.
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Internal Service Funds account for the financing ‘of services provided by one department or
agency to another department or agency of the District or to other governmental units on a
cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governments, or other funds.

Expendable Trust Funds account for resources, including both principal and earnings, which
must be expended according to the provision of a trust agreement. Expendable trust funds
are accounted for in essentially the same manner as governmental funds.

Nonexpendable Trust Funds account for trust principal which may not be expended. Only
interest eamed on the principal may be used for trust operations. Nonexpendable trust funds -
are accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds.

Agency Funds are purely custodial, thus do not involve measurement of results of
operations.

Account Groups

To make a clear distinction between fixed assets related to specific funds and those of general government,
and between long-term liabilities related to specific funds and those of a general nature, the following
account groups are used:

General Fixed Assets Account Group - This account group is established to account for ali
fixed assets of the District, other than those accounted for in the proprietary or trust funds.

General Long-Term Debt Account Group - This account group is established to account for all
long-term obligations of the District other than those accounted for in the proprietary or trust
funds.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting freatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.
All governmental fund types and expendable trust funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are
generally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases {i.e.,
revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net
current assets. B

All proprietary and non-expendable trust funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, ail assets and all liabilities associated with the
operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) is
segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary and nonexpendable
trust funds’ operating statements present increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net
total assets.

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts

~and repotted in the financial statements. Basis of accounting refates to the timing of the measurements
made,
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed for the governmental, expendable trust and agency
funds. Under this basis, revenues are recognized in the accounting period when they become both
measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined, and
“available™ means collectible within the current fiscal year or soon enocugh thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current fiscal year. The District considers revenues available if they are collected within
sixty days after fiscal year end.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue
sources are deemed both measurable and available: investment earnings, tuition, grants and entitlements
(if intended to finance current year operations), property taxes availabls for advance, and student fees.

The District reports deferred revenuas on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when a
potential revenue does not meet both the measurable and available criteria for recognition in the current
period. in the subsequent period, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, the hability for deferred
revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized. The portion of property
taxes that is measurable at June 30, 1999 but intended to finance fiscal year 1999 operations, has been
recorded as deferred revenue. Delinquent property taxes, whose availability is indeterminable and which
are intended to finance fiscal year 2000 operations, have been recorded as deferred revenue.

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in
which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Principal and interest on general long-ferm debt
are recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumuiated in the debt service fund
for payments to be made early in the following year, and the costs of accumulated unpaid vacation and sick
leave are reported as fund liabilities in the period in which they will be liquidated with available financial
resources rather than in the period earned by employees.

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized {for reporting purposes by the proprietary and nonexpendable
trust funds. Revenues are recognized when they are eamed and become measurable, and expenses are
recognized when they are incurred, if measurable. There were no unbilled service charges receivable at
year end. The fair vaiue of donated commodities used during the year is reported in the operating statement
as an expense with a like amount reported as donated commodities revenue. Unused donated commodities
are reported as deferred revenue.

With respect to proprietary activilies, the District has adopted GASB 20, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Govermnmental Units That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting”. The
District has elected to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements, as well as Financial Accounting
Standards Board pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board Opinions issued on or before November
30, 1988, unless those pronouncements conflict or contradict GASB pronouncements.

D.  Budgetary Data

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and entails the preparation of
budgetary documents within an established timetable. The major documents prepared are the tax budget,
the certificate of estimated resources, and the appropration resolution, alt of which are prepared on the
budgetary basis of accounting. The cedificate of estimated resources and the appropriations resolution are
subject to amendment throughout the year with the legal restriction that appropriations cannot exceed
estimated resources, as certified. All funds, other than agency funds, are legally required to be budgeted
and approptriated.
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1989

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Tax Budget:

Prior to January 15, the Superintendent and Treasurer submit to the Board of Education a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing for all funds. Public hearings are publicized and conducted to
obtain taxpayers’ comments. The express purpose of this budget document is to reflect the need for
existing (or increased) tax rates.

By no later than January 20, the Board-adopted budget is filed with the Warren County Budget Commission
for rate determination.

Prior to April 1, the Board of Education accepts, by formal resolution, the tax rates as determined by the
Budget Commission and receives the Commission’s Certificate of Estimated Resources which states the
projected revenue of each fund. Prior to June 30, the District must revise its budget so that total
contemplated expenditures from any fund during the ensuing year do not exceed the amount stated in the
Certificate of Estimated Resources. The revised budget then serves as the basis for the appropriation
measure. On or about July 1, the Ceriificate is amended to include unencumbered cash balances from the
preceding year. The Certificate may be further amended during the vear if projected increases or decreases
in revenue are identified by the District Treasurer. The amounts reported in the budgetary statements
refiect the amounts in the final Amended Certificate issued during fiscal year 1999.

Upon receipt from the Gounty Auditor of an Amended Official Certificate of Estimated Resources based on
the final assessed values and tax rates, or a certificate stating no new certificate is necessary, the annual
appropriation resolution must be legally enacted by the Board of Education at the fund, function, and object
level of expenditures, which are the legal levels of budgetary control. Prior to the passage of the annual
appropriation measure, the Board may pass a temporary appropriation measure to meet the ordinary
expenses of the District. The Appropriation resolution, by fund, must be within the estimated resources as
certified by the County Budget Commission, and the total of expenditures and encumbrances may not
exceed the appropriation totals at any level of control. Any revisions that alter the total of any fund
appropriation, or alter total function appropriations within a fund, or alter object appropriations within
functions, must be approved by the Board of Education. The Board may pass supplemental fund
appropriations so long as the total appropriations by fund do not exceed the amounts set forth in the most
recent Certificate of Estimated Resources. During the year, several supplemental appropriations were
legally enacted; however, none of these amendments were significant. The budget figures which appear in
the statements of budgetary comparisons represent the final appropriation amounts, including all
supplemental appropriations. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device
during the year for all funds, including the Debt Service Fund, consistent with statutory provisions.

Encumbrances:

As part of formal budgetary control, purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure
ol monies are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures on the Non-GAAF budgetary basis in order to
reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation and to determine and maintain legal compliance. On the
GAAP basis, encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as a reservation of fund balance for
subsequent-year expenditures for governmental funds and reported in the notes to the financial statements
for proprietary funds.

riations:

At the close of each year, the unencumbered balance of each appropriation reverts to the respective fund
from which it was appropriated and becomes subject to future appropriation. Encumbered appropriations
are carried forward to the succeeding fiscal year and are not reappropriated.
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Budgetary Basis af A .

While the District is reporting financial position, results of operations, and changes in fund balance on the
basis of generally accepied accounting principles (GAAP), the budgetary basis as provided by law is based
upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances.
The Combined Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
{Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - Al Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds and the
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Equity - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP
Budgetary Basis) - All Proprietary Fund Types and Nonexpendable Trust Funds are presented on the
budgetary basis to provide a meaningful comparison of actual results with the budget. The major
differences between the budget basis and GAAP basis are that:

1.

2.

Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget basis) as cpposed fo
when susceptible to accrual (GAAP basis);

Expenditures/expenses are recordéd when paid in cash (budget basis) as
opposed to when the liability is incurred (GAAP basis);

Encumbrances are treated as expenditures/expenses for all funds {budget
basis} rather than as a reservation of fund balance for governmental fund

types and as noted disclosures in the proprietary fund types (GAAP Basis); and
For proprietary funds the acquisltion and construction of capital assets are
reported on the operating statement (budget basis) rather than as balance
sheet fransactions {(GAAP basis).

The following tables summarize the adjustments necessary to reconcile the GAAP and budgetary basis
staterments by fund type.

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Cther Financing Uses

Govemmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds

Special Debt Capital Expendable
General Bevenue Service Projects Trust

GAAP Basis $605,299 ($85,683) $305,036 $423,215 {$1,686)
Net Adjustment for
Revenue Accruals 26,977 (18,670) 43,813 (14,698) 12
Advances - In 130,825 0 0 0 0
Net Adjustment for
Expenditure Accruals 182,735 4,283 0 (54,5086) 0
Advances - Qut Q Q ¢ {130,828} 0
Adjustment for ,
Encumbrances (328.252) 143.607) ___ 0 (309,825) — 0
Budget Basis $6817,584 {$243,677) $348,848 ($86,639) {$1,674)
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Net Income {Loss)/Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Operating Transfers Over/{Under) Expenses

Proprietary Fund Types and Nonexpendable Trust Funds

intemal Nonexpendable
Enterprise Service Jrust

GAAP Basis $3,006 $41,307 $275
Net Adjustment for
Resvenue Accruals 0 50,451 84
Commuadities Received (45,656) 0 0
Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 0 0 v}
Net Adjustment for
Expense Accruais 29,957 21,544 0
Cepreciation 5,174 87 0
Adjustment for
Encumbrances _(20171) 9 St}

$359

Budget Basis ($27,690) $113,389
E.  Cashand Cash Equivalents

Cash received by the District is pooled for investment purposes in one of three bank accounts with
individual fund cash balance integrity maintainad through the District’s financial records. Monies for afl
funds are maintained in these accounts or temporarily used to purchase shori-term investments. During
fiscal year 1999 investments were limited to ovemnight accounts, certificates of deposit, obligations of the
U.S. Treasury, and STAR Ohio, the State Treasurer's investment Pool. These investments are stated at fair
value as determined by quoted market prices. Under existing Ohio statutes, all investment eamings accrue
to the General Fund, except those specifically related to auxiliary services agency funds, certain trust
funds, and those funds individually authorized by Board resolution. Investment income earned in fiscal year
1999 totaled $507,860.

The District utilizes a financial institution to service bonded debt as principal and interest payments come
due. The balance in this account is presented on the Combined Balance Sheet as “Cash and Cash
Equivalents with Fiscal Agents” and represents depaosits.

The District set aside funds in the General Fund to establish the Budget Stabilization Reserve required
under the provisions of House Bill 412. This reserve is presented on the Combined Balance Sheet as
“Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents” and represents deposits.

For purposes of the Combined Statement of Cash Flows and for presentation on the Combined Balance
Sheet, investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time they are purchased by the District are
considered to be cash equivalents. Investments with a maturity greater than three months are considered
investments of the fund.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

F.

Inventory

Inventories of propristary funds are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined on a first-in,
first-out basis. Inventories of proprietary funds are expensed when used and consist of donated food,
purchased food, and school supplies held for resale. Unused commadities at year-end are reported as
deferred revenue since title does not pass to the school! district until the commodities are used.

Prepaid ltems

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 1999 are recorded as
prepaid items.

Fixed Asset D -

General Fixed Assets are not capitalized in the funds used to acquire or construct them. Instead, capital
acquisition and construction costs are reflected as expenditures in governmental funds, and related assets
are reported in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. Fixed assets utilized in the proprietary funds are
capitalized in the respective fund. All fixed assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and
updated for additions and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair
market values as of the date received. The District maintains a capitalization threshold of six hundred
dollars.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add 1o the value of the asset or matetially extend
an asset's life are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful
lives of the related fixed assets, as applicable.

Assets in the General Fixed Assets Account Group are not depreciated. Depreciation of fumiture and
equipment in the propristary fund types is computted using the straight-fine method over an  estimated
usefut life ranging from 8-20 years.

Intergovernmental Bevenues

For governmental funds, intergovemmental revenues, such as grants awarded on a non-reimbursement
basis, are recorded as receivables and revenues when measurable and available. Entitiemenis are
recorded as receivables and revenues in the pericd they are intended to finance. Reimbursement type
grants are recorded as receivables and revenues when the related expenditures are incurred. Other than
commodities, grants and enfitiements for proprietary fund operations are recognized as non-operating
revenues in the accounting period in which they are eamed and become measurable,

The District currently participates in several State and Federal programs, categorized as follows:

Entitlements
General Fund
State Foundation

Non-Reimbursable Grants
Spaciai Revenue Funds
Venture Capital
Phonics Demonstration
Professional Development
Financial Literacy
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Non-Reimbyrsable Granis
Special Revenue Funds (gantinyed)
Education Management Information Systems
SchoolNet Professional Deveiopment
Textbooks/instructional Materials Subsidy
Eisenhower
Title VI-B
Title |
Title VI
Drug Free Schools Program
Public Schoo! Preschool
Telecomm Act— FCC E-Rate o
Cagital Proj
SchoolNet

Beimbursable Granis
School Bus Purchase Reimbursement
Driver Education Reimbursement
National School Lunch and Milk Programs
Government Donated Commodities

Grants and entitlements amaunted to approximately 46 percent of the District’s operating revenue during
the 1999 fiscal year.

J. Short-Term Intesfund A Liahilt

During the course of normal operations, the District has numerous transactions between funds. The most
significant include:

1. Routine transfers of resources from one fund to another fund through which resources to

be expended are recorded as operating transfers;

2. Reimbursements from one fund to ancther fund are treated as expenditures or expenses

in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction in expenditures or expenses in the reimbursed fund;

3. Short-term interfund loans are reflected as interfund loans payable/receivable, while long-

term interfund loans (greater than one vear in length) are recorded as advances to/from other

funds. The District has no long-term advances as of June 30, 1898,

An analysis of interfund transactions is presented in Note 13.
K Compensated Absences

(GASB Statement No. 18 specifies that compensated absences should be accrued as they are eamed by
employees i both of the following conditions are met:

1. The employee's rights to receive compensation are afiributable to services already
rendered; and

2. It is probable that the employer will compensate the employee for the benefits through
paid time off or cash payment.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

For governmental funds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the amount expected to be
paid using expendable avaiiable resources. These amounts are recorded in the account “Compensated
Absences Payable” in the fund from which the employees who have accumulated unpaid leave are paid. The
remainder is reperted in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. in proprietary funds, the entire
amount of compensated absences is reported as a fund liability. Salary-related paymenis are included, if
material.

L. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt is recoghized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or when resources have been
accumulated in the Debt Service Fund for payment early in the following year. For other leng-term
cbligations, only that portion expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is
reported as a fund liability of a governmental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations is reported in
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

M. Eund Balance Reserves

The District records reservations for portions of fund equity which are legally segregated for specific future
use or which do not represent available spendable rescurces and therefore are not available for
appropriations for expenditures. Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion of fund equity which is
available for appropriation in future periods. Fund equity reserves are established for encumbrances,
prepaids, property tax advances, and budgetary set-asides required by Ohio law. Reserves have also been
established in the nonexpendable trust fund for contributions which are not spendable resources.

N. TIeial Columns on General Purpose Financial Siatements

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are captioned “{Memorandum Only)” to indicate
that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial
position, results of operations, or cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. interfund eliminations have not been made in the
aggregation of this data.

0. Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumpfions that affect the amounts reporied in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

NOTE 3 - FUND DEFICIT
The Food Service enterprise fund had a deficit fund balance of ($21,852) as of June 30, 1999. The fund

deficit resulted from adjustments for accrued liabilities. The General Fund is liable for any deficit in this fund
and provides operating transfers when cash is required, not when accruals oceur,

NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
State statutes require the classification of monies held by the District into three categories.
Category 1 consists of “active” monies, those monies required to be kept in a “cash” or “near-cash” status
for immediate use by the District. Such monies must be maintained either as cash in the District Treasury, in

depository accounts payable or withdrawable on dermand, including negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW}
accounts, or in money market deposit accounts.
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T prl

NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Category 2 consists of “inactive” monies, those monies not required for use within the current two-year
period of designation of depositories. Inactive monies may be deposited or invested as certificates of
deposit maturing not later than the end of the current period of designation of depositories, or as savings or
deposit accounts including, but not limited to, passbook accounts.

Category 3 consists of “interim” monies, those monies which are not needed for immediate use but which will
be needed before the end of the current period of designation of depositories. Interim monies may be
invested or deposited in the following securities provided they mature or are redeemable within two years
from the date of purchase:

1. Bonds, notes, or other obligations of, or guaranteed by, the United States, or those for
which the faith of the United States is pledged for the payment of principal and interest;

2. Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by any federal
government agency or instrumentaiity, including by not limited to, the federal national
mortgage association, federal home loan bank, federal farm credit bank, federal home loan
mortgage corporation, government national mortgage association, and student loan
marketing association. All federal agency securities shall be direct Issuances of federal
government agencies or instrumentalities;

3. Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the market
value of the securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal value
of the agreement by at least two percent and be marked to market daily, and that the term of
the agreement must not exceed thirty days;

4. Bonds and other obiigations of the State of Ohio;

5. No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described in
division (1) or {2) of this section and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations,
provided that investments in securities described in this division are made only through
eligible institutions;

6. The State Treasurer’s investment pool (STAR Ohio);

7. Certain bankers’ acceptances and commercial paper notes for a period not to exceed one
hundred and eighty days in an amount not to exceed twenty-five percent of the interim monies
available tor investment at ahy one time; and

8. Under limited circumstances, corporate debt interests rated in either of the two highest
rating classifications by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies.

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements and derivatives
are prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage, the use of leverage and short
selling are also prohibited. An invesiment must mature within five years from the date of purchase uniess
maiched o a specific obligation or debt of the District, and must be purchased with the expectation that it
will be held to maturity. Investments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions. Payment
for investments may be only upon delivery of the securities representing the investments to the treasurer,
or if the securities are not represented by a certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of transfer from the
custodian.
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NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

In addition to the investments listed, any Board of Education, by a two-thirds vote of its members, may
authorize the treasurer to invest up to twenty-five percent of the interim monies of the Board, available for
investment at any one time, in either of the following:

1. Commercial paper notes issued by any corporation for profit that is incorporated under the
laws of the United States or any state and has assets exceeding five hundred million dollars,
and to which all of the following apply to their notes:

a. The notes are rated at the time of purchase in the highest classification established by
at least two standard rating services;

b. The aggregate value of the notes does not exceed 10 percent of the aggregate value of
the outstanding commercial paper of the issuing corporation; and

¢. The notes mature no later than 180 days after purchase.

2. Bankers’ acceptances of banks that are members of the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation to which all of the following apply to their obligations:

a. The obligations are eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System; and
b. The obligations mature no later than 180 days after purchase.

Pretection of District cash and investments is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, as
well as qualified securities pledged by the institution holding the assets. By law, financial institutions may
establish a collateral pool to cover all public deposits. The face value of the poocled collateral must equal at
least 110 percent of public funds deposited. Collateral is held by trustees, including the Federal Reserve
Bank and designated third-party trustees of the financial institutions.

Depasits: The District is required to categorize deposits and investments according to GASB Statement
No. 3, “Deposits with Financial [nstitutions, Investments, and Reverse Repurchase Agreements”. At year-
end, the carrying amount of the District's deposits was $238,761. The bank balance was $371,142. Of the
bank balance, $216,072 was covered by federal depository insurance, and the remaining amount was
covered by collateral held by the pledging banks’ trust department pursuant to Section 135.181, Chio
Revised Code, in collateral pools securing all public funds on deposit with specific depesitory institutions.
Ohio Revised Code Section 135.181 Uniform Depository Act authorizes pledging of pooled securities in fieu
of pledging specific securities. Specifically, a designated public depository may pledge a single pool of
eligible securities to secure payment of all public monies deposited in the financial institution, provided that
at all times the total value of the securities so pledged is at least equal to 110% of the total amount of ail
public deposits secured by the pool, including the portion of such deposits covered by any federal deposit
insurance. Although the pledging bank has an investment and securities pool used to collateralize all public
deposits which are held in the financial institutions name, noncompliance with federal requirements could
potentially subject the District to a successful claim by the FDIC. The deposits not covered by federal
depository insurance are considered uninsured and uncollateralized under the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 3. .

Investments: The Distriet's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk
assumed by the District at year-end:

Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered, or for which the securities are held
by the District or its agent in the District's name;
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NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments which are held by the counterparty’s
trust department or agent but not in the District’s name; and

Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by
the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent, but not in the District's name.

Based on the above criteria, the District's investments at June 30, 1999 are classified as follows:

Category
LDescription 1 2 3 Carrving Value / Fair Vaiue
Overnight Treasury $0 S0 $39,036 $39,038
STAR Ohio (1) N/A N/A N/A 9,740,832
$0 $0 $39,036 $9,779,868
== = ——— —- -

(1) The District's investments in STAR Ohio are not categorized because they are not evidenced by
securities that exist in physical or book entry form.

The clagsification of cash and cash equivalents and investmenis on the combined financial statements is
based on criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 8.

A reconciliation between the classifications of cash _and investments on the combined financial statements
and the classification per GASB Statement No. 3 is as follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalents = =~ Deposits/investments Tolal
GASB Statement 9 510,018,629 $0 $10,018,629
Overnight Treasury {39,036) 39,036 0
STAR Ohio {8.740.832) 2,740,832 —— @
GASB Statement 3 $238,761 $9,779,868 $10,018,629
E——————— 1 TR T ————

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are levied and assessed on a calendar year basis. Second half distributions occur in a new
fiscal year.

Property taxes include amounts levied against all real, public utility, and tangible personal {used in
business) property located in the District. Real property taxes are levied after April 1 on the assessed value
listed as of the prior January 1, the lien date. Public utility property taxes attached as a lien on December 31
of the prior year were levied April 1 and are collected with real property taxes. Assessed values for real
property taxes are established by State law at 35 percent of appraised market value. Ali property is required
to be revalued every six years. Public utility property taxes are assessed on tangible personal property at
88 percent of true value {with cettain exceptions) and on real property at 35 percent of true value. Tangible
personal property taxes are levied after April 1 on the value listed as of December 31 of the current year.
Tangible personal property assessments are 25 percent of true value.
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NOTE 5 - PROPERTY TAXES$ (continued)
The assessed values upon which the fiscal year 19989 taxes were collected are:

1998 Second- 1999 First-
Amount Percent Amount Percent
Agricultural/Residential
and Other Real Estate $342,775,310 86.06% $368,094,830 B86.27%
Public Utility Personal 28,547,430 717% 29,967,060 7.02%

Tangible Personal Property —<6.982,036 —877% — 28,631,100 — 8%

Total Assessed Value $398,304,776 100.00% $426,692,990 100.00%

Tax raie per $1,000 of assessed valuation $51.13 $50.03

Real property taxes are payable annually or semiannually. |f paid annually, payment is due January 20; if
paid semiannually, the first payment is due January 20 with the remainder payabie by June 20. Under
certain circumstances, state statute pemmits earlier or later payment dates to be established.

Tangible personal property taxes paid by multi-county taxpayers are due September 20. Single county
taxpayers may pay annually or serniannually. If paid annually, payment is due April 30; if paid semiannually,
the first payment is due April 30, with the remainder payable by September 20.

The District receives property taxes from Warren County. The County Auditor periodically advances to the
District its portion of the taxes collected. Second-half real property tax payments collected by the county
by June 30, 1999 are available to finance fiscal year 1999 operations. The amount available to be advanced
can vary based on the date the tax bills are sent.

Accrued property taxes receivable represent delinquent taxes outstanding and real property, perscnal
property, and public utility taxes which became measurable as of June 30, 1999. Although iotal property tax
collections for the next fiscal year are measurable, only the amount available as an advance at June 30 is
intended to finance current year operations. The receivable is therefore offset by a credit to deferred
revenue for that portion not intended to finance current year operations. The amount available as an
advance at June 30, 1999 was $712,572 and is recognized as revenue. The amount available for advance
at June 30, 1998 was $753,644,

NOTE 6 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 1999 consisted of taxes, accounts receivable, intergovernmental receivables, and
interest. All receivables are considered collectibie in full due to the ability to foreclose for the nonpayment
of taxes, the stable condition of State programs, and the current-year guarantee of Federal Funds. A
summary of the principal items of receivables follows:

JEKQS Accounts jmg[ggygmmgma Interest

General $10,034,436 35,982 $0 $860
Special Revenue 0 o 40,948 0]
Debt Service 587,557 0 0 v
Capital Projects 779,343 o] 0 0
Internal Service o, 0 5,673 0
Trust and Agency Q g Q 401
Totals $11,401,378 $5,882 $46,621 $1,261

- — p————1 ) ———re fo
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NCTE 7 - FIXED ASSETS

A summary of the Proprietary Funds’ fixed assets at June 30, 1929, follows:

Enierprise Infernal Service
Fumiture and Equipment $168.221 $1,837
Less accumulated depreciation _{105.507) . (B8}
Net Fixed Assets § 62,714 $1,749

— — —__—

A summary of the changes in general fixed assets during fiscal year 1999 foliows:

Balance Balance
Land $975,486 50 %0 $975,486
Buildings 14,341,336 352,503 0 14,693,839
Fumiture and Equipment 3,062,775 600,216 108,035 3,543,956
Vehicles —2.050,446 _3.988 55028 —1.999,406
Totals $20,420,043 $9586,707 $164,063 $21,212,687

NOTE 8 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various tisks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees and natural disasters. During fiscal year 1999, the
District contracted with Nationwide Insurance Company for general liabillly insurance with a $2,000,000
single cccurrence limit and a $5,000,000 aggregate with a $1,000 deductible.

Property is protected by Indiana Insurance and holds a $500 deductible. The bus fleet and maintenance
vehicles are insured by Indiana insurance with a $500 deductible and a $1,000,000 limit per occurrence.

The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company maintains a $10,000 position bond for the Board President and
Superintendent. The Ohio Casualty insurance Company maintains a $50,000 position bond for the Director
of Operations. The Ohio Casualty insurance Company maintains a $1,000,000 performance bond for the
Treasurer and a $25,000 position bond for the five other employees in the Treasurer's Office. The Ohio
Casualty Insurahce Company holds a $10,000 blanket bond for alt other employees.

Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the last five fiscal years.

The District pays the State Workers’' Compensation System a premium based on a rate per $100 of salaries.
This rate is calculated based on accident history and administrative costs.

The District provides lite insurance and accidental death and dismemberment coverage to all employees.
The life insurance is $40,000 for cettified and administrative staff and $25,000 for non-certified staff.
Medical Life, a division of Community Mutual, is the life insurance carrier for the District.

The District has elected to provide employee medicalfsurgical and dental benefits through a self-insurance
program. The District maintains a seff-insurance intemai service fund to account for and finance its
uninsured risks of loss in this program. This plan provides a medical/surgical plan with a $100 single and
$200 family deductible and then 20% of the next $2,000 is payable by the employee. A third party
administrator, Harrington Benefit Services (formerly BenePlan Strategies} located in Dayton, Ohio, reviews
and pays all claims. The District purchases stop-loss coverage of $50,000 per individual claim.
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NOTE 8 - RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The District and employees pay into the Employee Benefits Self-insurance Internal Service Fund $559.82
for family coverage or $226.36 for individual coverage per month, which represenis the entire premium
required. The premium is paid by the fund that pays the salary for the employee and is based on historical
cost information.

In an effort to curb health care spending, a Preferred Provider Organization (PPO} medical plan was
established. This provides a network of physicians and hospitals the employees may elect to utilize to
reduce their out-of-pocket expenditures on health care. With this plan, the District and employees pay into
the Employee Benefits Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund $376.79 for family coverage or $144.92 for
individual coverage per month, which represents the entire premium required. Dental coverage is also
provided on a self-insured basis by the District with Harrington Benefits Services serving as the third-party
administrater. Premiums for this coverage are $55.31 for family coverage or $21.27 for individual coverage.
The District is responsible for payment of all claim amounts in excess of the employes payment percentages
established in the plan document.

The liability for unpaid claims cost of $224,449 reported in the Employee Benefits Self-Insurance Fund at
June 30, 1999, is based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
106 which requires that a liability for unpaid claims costs, including estimates of costs relating fo incurred but
not reported claims, be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that
it is probable that a [iability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and that the amount of
the oss can be reasonably estimated. Changes in the Fund's claims liability amount in 1988 and 1899 were:

Balance at Current Year Claims Balance at

BeginningofYear  Claim  Payments  Endof Year

Fiscal Year 1998 $181,235 $1,215,135 $1,196,698 $199,672
Fiscal Year 1999 199,672 1,249,248 1,224,471 224,449

NOTE @ - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

A,

School Employees Retirement System

The District contributes to the Schocl Employees Retirement System of Chio (SERS), a cost-sharing
muttiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the School Employees Relirement Board.,
SEHS provides basic retirement benefits, disability, survivor, and health care benefits based on eligible
service credit to members and beneficiaries. Benefits are established by Chapter 3309 of the Ohio Revised
Code. SERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for SERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Schoel Employees
Retirement System, 45 North Fourth Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3634.

Plan members are required to contribute 9% of their annual covered salary, and the District is required to
contribute 14%; 8.02% was the portion to fund pension obligations. The contribution rates are not
determined actuarially, but are esiablished by SERS’s Retirement Board within the rates allowed by State
statute. The adequacy of the contribution rates is determined annually. The District’s contributions to
SERS during the years ending June 30, 1989, 1998, and 1997 were $461,136, $427,512, and $370,704,
respectively; 50.0% has been contributed for fiscal year 1989 and 100% for the fiscal year 1998 and 1997.
$225,150 representing the unpaid contribution for fiscal year 1999 is recorded as a liability within the
respective funds and the general long-term debt account group.

Staie Teachers Betirement System
The District contributes to the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer public employee retirement system administered by the State Teachers Retirement Board. STRS
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NOTE 9 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (continued}

provides basic retirement benefits, disability, survivor, and health care benefits based on eligible service
credit to members and beneficiaries. Benefits are established by Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code.
STRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for STRS. That report may be obtained by wrmng to the State Teachets
Retirement System, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3771.

Plan members are required to contribute 9.3% of their annual covered salary, and the District is required to
contribute 14%; 10.5% was the paortion o fund pension obligations. Contribution rates are established by
STRS, upon recommendation of its consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory maximum rates of 10% for
members and 14% for employers. The District's contributions to STRS during the years ending June 30,
1999, 1998, and 1997 were $1,637,248, $1,416,768, and $1,265,916, respectively; 83.3% has been
contributed for fiscal year 1999 and 100% for the fiscal year 1998 and 1997. $286,208 representing the
unpaid contribution for fiscal year 1999 is recorded as a liability within the respective funds.

NOTE 10 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

For the State Teachers Retirement System, no premiums are currently paid by retirees or primary benefit
recipients; however, monthly payments are required for covered spouses and other dependents. Benefits
are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis through an allocation of employer contributions to the System equal to
two percent of covered payroll. For the District, the amount equaled $233,893 during the 1999 fiscal year.
As of July 1, 1998 (the latest information available), eligible benefit recipients totaled 91,998 for the System
as a whole.

For the School Employees Retirement System, all retirees with a retirement date prior to July 1, 1986 are
eligible to receive benefits. Retirees with a retirement date on or after July 1, 1986 must have ten years of
service credit to be eligible fo receive benefits. Retirees with retirement dates on or after July 1, 1988 who
have ten to twenty-five years of service credit must pay a portion of their own coverage. Retirees with a
retirement date prior to July 1, 1989, and retirees with a retirement date on or after July 1, 1989 with more
than twenty-five years of service credit, do not pay a premium. Premium payments are required for all
covered spouses and dependents. For fiscal year 1998, employer contributions to fund health care benefits
were 4.98 percent of covered payroll.

As of June 30, 1998 (the latest information available), the number of retirees and covered dependents
currently receiving henefits was approximately 50,000. The District’s actual contributions for the 1939
fiscal year were $164,033. Actuarial contribution requirements are determined for the SERS as a whole, not
for individual employers. Net assets available for payment of health care benefits at June 30, 1998 (the
latest information available) were $160.3 miliion for the System.

NOTE 11 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term obligations activity of the District for the year ended June 30, 1999 was as follows:
Principal Outstanding Principal Cutstanding
| 30. 1998 Additi C - 30. 1998
General Obligation Bonds:
Construction of New Building / Addition
1992 4.65% $3,465,000 $0 $1,095,000 $2,370,000

House Bill 264 Renovation
1985 5.25% 1,205,000 4] 125,000 1,080,000
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NOTES TO THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 11 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

Schocl Bus Acquisition Bonds

1698 5.20% 247,000 o 44 000 203,000
Pension Obligations 160,828 0 1,998 158,830
Compensated Absences 1.377.143 2,445 0 —1.409,588
Total General
Long-Termn Obligations $6,454,971 $32,445 $1,265,998 $5,221,418

— —————— b
The District's voted legal debt margin at June 30, 1999 was $38,402,369, with an unvoted debt margin of
$426,693.

General obligation bonds will be paid from the Debt Service Fund. Compensated absences will be paid from
the fund from which the person is paid.

Principal and interest requirements to retire general obligation bonds outstanding at June 30, 19899 are as

follows:
Fiscal Year Ending
«une 30, Principal Interest Total
2000 1,362,000 146,705 1,508,705
2001 1,375,000 82,047 1,457,047
2002 197,000 44,390 241,390
2003 209,000 33,733 242,733
2004 160,000 22,575 182,575
2005 170,000 13,913 183,913
2006 180,000 — 4,720 — 184,725
Total $3,653,000 $348,088 $4,001,088
T —

NOTE 12 - CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Changes to the Enterprise Fund’s contributed capital for the year ended June 30, 1999 are as follows:
Fumiture and Equipment $29,439 $0 $0 $29,439

e - o= == P

NOTE 13 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund balances at June 30, 1999 consisted of the following individual fund receivables and payables:

DUE FBROM /DUE TO OTHER FUNDS:
Pue From DueTn
General Fund 0 $102.245
Special Revenue Funds:
Auxilia 0 4
Titte Vi 0 1,004
Titie | 0 408
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NOTES TC THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

NOTE 13 -~ INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (contiuned)

Enterprise Fund:

ood Service Q 11,486

Intemal Service Funds:
Warren County Juvenile Detention Center i 0 2678
Employee Benefits Self-Insurance 118,143 0
Total $118,143 $118,143
mZDEaEE=E Pt o4

NOTE 14 - SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The District maintains two Enterprise funds to account for the operations of food service and uniform school
supplies. The table below reflects in a summarized format the more significant financial data relatlng to the
Enterprise Funds of the District as of, and for the fiscal year ended, June 30, 1999,

Food Seryi Uniforr School Supgl Total E rise Fund
QOperating Revenues $765,331 $198,087 $963,428
Operating Expenses

Before Depreciation 1 .035,4347 201,844 1237278
Deprecliation 5174 0 5,174
Operating (Loss) ] (275,277) (3,747 (279,024)
Donated Commeodities ) 45,656 0 45 656
Cperating Grants 208,649 - ] 208 649
Operating Transfers In 7,533 20,182 27,725
Net Income {Loss) (13,439) 16,445 3006
Net Working Capital (84,566} 27482 (57,084)
Total Assets 84,634 36,929 121,623
Total Fund Equity (Deficit) (21,852} 27482 5630
Encurmbrances at June 30, 195% 0 20,171 20,171

NOTE 15 - JOINTLY-GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS

A.

Southwestem Ohio Computer Association (SWOCA) is a jointly-governed organization among a three-
county consortium of school districts. The jointly-governed organization was formed for the purpose of
applying modem technoelogy with the aid of computers and other etectronic equipment to administrative and
instructional functions amang member districts. Each of the governments of these schioofs supports
SWOCA based upon a per pupil charge dependent upon the software package utilized. SWOCA is govemned
by a Board of Directors consisting of the Superintendents and Treasurers of member school districts. The
degree of control exercised by any participating school district is limited to its representation on the Board.
The Board consists of one representative from each of the participating 29 school districts, During the 1999
fiscal year, the District paid $39,380 to SWOCA for services. Financial information can be abtained from
Michael Crurniey, Director, 3603 Hamilion-Middletown Road, Hamilton, Ohlo 48011.

Wanren CGounty Career Genter :

The Warren County Career Center is a dislinet polifical subdivision of the State of Ohioc operated under the
direction of a Board consisting of one representative from each participating schoo! district’s elected board,
which possesses its own budgeting and taxing authority. Accordingly, the Warren County Career Center is
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NOTE 15 - JOINTLY-GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS (Ceontinued)

not part of the District, and its operations are not included as part of the reporting entity. The District does
not provide any funding {o the Warren County Career Center. Financial information can be obtained from
Evelyn Sellman, Treasurer, 3525 North State Route 48, Lebanon, Ohio 45036.

NOTE 16 - CONTINGENCIES
Grants:

The District received financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants. The
expenditure of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and
conditions specified in the grant agreetents and is subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed
claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable funds.
Howevar, in the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not have a malerial adverse effect
on the overall financial position of the District at June 30, 1998,

NOTE 17 - UNCERTAINTIES

On March 24, 1898, the Ohio Supreme Court rendered a decision declaring certain portions of the Ohio
school funding plan unconstitutional. The Court stayed ihe sffect of its ruling for one year to allow the
State’s legislature fo design a plan to remedy the perceived defects in that system. Declared
unconstitutional was the State’s “school foundation program”, which provides significant amounts of
monetary support io the District. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the District received
$9,462,982 of school foundation suppotrt for its general fund.

Since the Supreme Court ruling, numerous pieces of legislation have been passed by the State legislature in
an attemnpt to address the issues identified by the Gourt. The Court of Common Pleas in Perry County has
reviewed the new laws and, in a decision issued on February 26,1998, determined they are not sufficiently
responsive to the constitutional issues raised under the “thorough and efficient” clause of the Ohio
Constitution. The State has appealed the decision made by the Court of Common Pleas to the Ohio Supreme
Court. At this time, to the Ohio Suprerne Couri has not rendered an opinion on this issue. The decislon of the
Court of Common Pleas in Perry County has been stayed by the Ohio Supreme Court, and, as such, School
Districts are still operating under the laws that the Court of Common Pleas declared unconstitutional. As of
the date of these financiai statements, the District is unable o determine what eflect, if any, this decision
will have on its future state funding under this program and on its financial aperations.

NOTE 18 - YEAR 2000 ISSUE

The year 2000 issue is the result of shortcomings in many electronic data processing systems and other
equipment that may adversely affect the govermment’s operations.

The District has completed an inventory of computer systems and other equipment necessary to conducting
District operations and has identified such systems as being financial accounting, payroll/personnel,
student information, grant reporting, and other administrative systems.

The District uses the State of Chio Uniform School Accounting System software for its financial reporting,
and the State of Ohio Uniform Staff Payroll System software for its payroll and employee benefits. The
State is responsible for remediating these systems and is solely responsible for any costs associated with
the system software.
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NOTE 18 — YEAR 2000 ISSUE (continued)

The State of Ohio distributes a substantial sum of money to the District in the form of “Foundation™ and
federal and state grant payments. Further, the State processes a significant amount of financial and non-
financial information about the District through the State’s Education Management and Information System
(EMIS). The State is responsibie for remediating these systems. The State is solely responsible for any
costs associated with the Foundation processing and EMIS systems.

Warren County collects property taxes for distribution to the District. Warren County is responsible for
remediating the tax collection system and is solely responsible for any costs assoclated with the tax
colfection system project.

Because of the unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related
remediation efforts will not be fully determinakle until the year 2000 and thereafter. Management cannot
assure that the District is or will be year 2000 ready, that the school district's remediation efforts will be
successtul in whole or in part, or that parties with whom the school district does business will be year 2000
ready. :

NOTE 19 - STATUTORY RESERVES

The District is required by state law to set aside general fund revenue amounis, as defined, into various
reserves. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1989, the resetve activity (cash-basis) was as follows:

Capital Budget

Texthook Maintenance Stabilization

Beserve. Resewve Beserve
Balance, 7/1/98 % 0 $ 0 $ 80,137
Required Set-Aside 331,711 331,711 165,855
Qualifying Expenditures (331,711) (331,711) 0
Offset Credits ¢ 0 0
Balance, 6/30/99 $ 0 ) 0 $ 245992

Expenditures for texibook and capital activity during the year were $469,658 and $605,390, respectively,
which exceeded the required set-aside reserve.

NOTE 20 — CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

The Internal Revenue Code previously required that Section 457 deferred compensation plan assets remain
the property of the employer government unti! available to the employee or beneficiary. Under these
regulations, plan assets are recorded in the District's Deferred Compensation agency fund.

Recent changes to the Internal Revenue Code requite Section 457 plan assets to be held in trust for the
exclusive benefit of the employees. Thee plans were required o establish trust agreements prior to January
1, 1999. GASB Statement No. 32, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section
457 Deferred Compensation Plans” requires that such assets held in trust, not be reflected on the
government's financial statements.

During fiscal 1998, the Ohio Public Employees Deferred Compensation Plan adopted frust agreements.
Accordingly, agency fund assets as of July 1, 1999 have been reduced by $70,447.
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is used to account for governmental resources not accounted for in
any other fund. The General Fund balance is available to the District for any purpose

provided it is expended or transferred according to the general laws of the State of
Ohio.
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, QHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actuat (Unfavorable}
Reverues:
Taxes $8.212,198 $9,212,198 $0Q
Intergovemmental 10,656,813 10,656,813 4}
Interest 363,045 363,045 0
Tuition and Fees 163,357 163,357 0
Misceilaneous 110,035 110,038 o]
Total Revenues 20,505,448 20,505,448 0
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular:
Salaries and Wages 7,850,657 7,850,657 Q
Fringe Benefits 1,843,877 1,843,877 Q
Purchased Services 248,047 248,047 0
Materials and Supplies 482,781 482,781 Q
Capital Outlay - New 68,526 68,526 0
Capital Qutlay - Replacement 32,843 32,843 o
Other 290 250 c
Total Regular 10,527,021 10,527,021 0
Special:
Salaries and Wages 785,656 785,856 0
Fringe Benefits 202,259 202,259 0
Purchased Servicas 2,240 2,240 Q
Materials and Supplies 10,6854 10,654 Q
Capital Outlay - New 754 764 4]
Total Special 1,001,573 1,001,573 a
Other:
Purchased Services 239,637 239,637 Q
Total Other 239,637 238,637 o
Tota!l Instruction 11,768,231 11,768,231 o]
Support Services:
Pupils:
Salaries and Wages 642,515 642,515 _ @
Fringe Benelits 151,012 151,012 ]
Purchased Setvices 100,768 100,768 o
Materials and Supplies 10,358 10,358 0
Capital Outlay - New 1,951 1,851 i}
Capital Outlay - Replacement 2,028 2,028 0
Cther 40 40 0
Totat Pupils 808,672 908,672 o]
Cantinued
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998
{CONTINUED} Varance
Ravised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Instructional Staff;
Salaries and Wages $698,949 $698,949 $0
Fringe Benefits 212,024 212,024 4]
Purchased Services $,134 9,134 [¢]
Matarials and Supplies 48,445 45,445 [}
Capital Outlay - New 23,278 23,278 o]
Capital Outlay - Replacement . 5,132 5,132 o]
Other 11,598 11,598 ¥
Total Instructional Stafi 1,C05,580 1,005,560 0
Board of Education:
Salaries and Wages 6,000 §,000 o]
Fringe Benefits 708 708 °
Purchased Services 9,431 9,431 +]
Materials and Suppties 220 220 o]
GCther 17,720 17,720 o}
Total Board of Education 34,079 34,079 9]
Administration:
Salaries and Wages 1,070,369 1,070,369 0
Fringe Benefits 316,711 318,711 0
Purchased Services 219,022 219,022 0
Materials and Supplies 7.593 7,593 0
Capitaf Outlay - New 11,863 11,863 0
Capital Qutlay - Replacement 5,369 5,368 4]
Other 136,078 136,078 0
Total Administration 1,767,005 1,767,005 o
Fiscal: .
Balaries and Wages 206,002 206,002 [
Fringe Benefits 68,281 68,281 o]
Purchased Services 63,532 83,5632 [¢]
Materials and Supplies 7,465 7,465 o]
Capital Qutiay - New 26,504 26,804 o
Capital Cutlay - Replacement 4,750 4,750 o]
Othet 171,998 171,988 5]
Total Fiscal 548,832 548,832 0
Business:
Salaries and Wages 91,507 91,507 0
Fringe Benefits 23,546 23,546 0
Purchased Services 4,082 4,082 0
Materials and Supplies 1,251 1,251 0
Capital Qutlay - New 2,737 2,737 0
Capital Qutlay - Replacement 2,493 2,493 0
Other 485 485 4]
Total Business 126,101 126,101 [}
Continued
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BAS!S)
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1958
{CONTINUED)

Operation and Maintenance of Plant:
Salaries and Wages

Fringe Benefits

Purchased Services

Materials and Suppiies

Capital Qutlay - New

Total Operation and Maintenance of Piant

Pupil Transportation:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Qutiay - New

Total Pupil Transportation

Central:
Balaries and Wages
Fringe Benefils
Purchased Servicas
Materials and Supplies
Capital Qutlay - New

Total Central
Total Support Services
Operation of Non-lnstructional Services:
Community Services:
Purchased Services
Tetal Operation of Non-Instructional Services
Extracurricular Activities:
Academic and Subject Oriented Activities:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefils
Other
Total Academic and Subject Oviented Activities
Qcocupational Oriented Actlvities:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits

Total Occupational Qriented Activities

40

Variance
Hevised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$747,351 $747,331 $0
215,224 215,224 0
516,181 516,181 0
133,265 133,265 4]
2,223 2,223 o]
1,614,224 1,614,224 0
891,211 891,211 0
265,548 265,945 o)
163,590 163,590 o]
185,815 185.815 0
3,120 3,120 0
1,509,885 1,509,685 o]
38,979 38,979 4]
12,383 12,383 0
80,834 80,834 ]
4,333 4,332 o]
630 680 0
137,209 137,209 o
7,651,367 7,651,367 0
1,541 1,541 o
1,541 1,541 Q
34,906 34,906 o]
5,591 5,591 o]
1,885 1,855 0
42,152 42,152 0
2,306 2,306 4]
378 378 Q
2,684 2,684 v}
Continued



LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1989
(CONTINUED)

Sports Criented Activities:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Total Sports Oriented Activities
School and Public Service Co-Curricular Activities:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Tota! School and Public Service Co-Curricular Activities

Total Extracurricular Activities

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenuss Over Expendituras
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets
Refund of Prior Year Expenditures
Advances - In

Operating Transfers - Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balance at June 30, 1888
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balance at June 30, 1999

Variance
Revised Faverable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$259,291 $259,291 $0
52,934 52,934 o]
2,506 2,506 4]
314,731 314,731 0
16,372 16,372 0
2,691 2,691 o]
19,063 19,063 o]
378,630 378,630 4]
18,799,769 19,798,769 0
705,67¢ 705,679 o]
1,614 1,614 o]
49,246 49,246 0
130,825 130,825 D
(269,780) (269,780) 0
(88,095} (88,005) 4]
617,584 617,584 0
4,189,406 4,198,406 0
412,305 412,305 0
$5,229,285 $5,229,295 $0
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenue sources, other than major capital projects or
expendable trusts, that are legelly restricted to expenditure for specified purposes. The foliowing are
descriptions of each Special Revenue Fund:

To account for specific local revenue source, other than taxes, generated by individual school buildings.
Expenditures include field trips, matenrals, equipment, and other items to supplement co-curricular and
extracurricular programs.

Miscelianeous Local Grants:
To account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources, except for State and Federal grants, that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Venture Capital:
To account for State monies which support the school improvement program and to enhance faculty
knowledge and experiences.

To account for revenues from athletic events and all costs {except supplemental coaching contracts) of
the District’s athletic program.

Auxiliary Serviges:
To account for state funds provided for services and materals to pupils attending non-public schools
within the District.

To account for state funds provided to train teachers to understand the structure of the sound/symbol
system of the English language and fo apply this system to classroom instruction.

Professional Development:
To account for state funds provided for continuing education for teachers through seminar training and
conferences.

Ei ial Li .
To account for state funds provided to assist students {K-3) in making better decisions as spenders,
savers, borrowers, and managers of money.

Management Information System;
To account for expenditures made in conjunction with the implementation of a systemn to gather student,
staff and financial information to comply with Senate Bilf 140.

SchoolNet Professional Development:
To account for state funds to provide regional technology training by SchoolNet and as community
learning centers.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (continued)

Textbooks/l ional Materials Subsidy:
To account for state funds to provide appropriate instruction to students in the following subject areas:
reading, writing, mathematics, science, and citizenship.

Eisenhower:
To account for federal funds used to expand the awareness of elementary grade teachers in the area of
sclence and math education through inservice training.

To account for federal funds used to assist schools in the identification of handicapped children,
developmenti of procedural safeguards, implementation of least-restrictive, altemative service patterns,
and provision of full educational opportunities to handicapped children at the preschool, elementary, and
secondary levels.

To account for federal funds whose purpose is to provide financial assistance to enable state and local
educational agencies to meet the special needs of educationally-deprived children.

Title VI
To account for federal funds which support the implementation and improvement of a variety of programs,
such as computer education, library supplies and materials, training, and staff development.

To account for federal funds used to implement programs to educate and encourage students to live their
lives free of drug dependency.

Public School Preschool:

To account for funds used to assist in paying the cost of preschool programs for three- and four-year olds.

To account for federal funds paid directly to the Districts telecommunications provider. Although the
District does not receive these funds directly, they are reimbursed to the district through invoice credits or
check reimbursements.

To account for federal funds that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.




LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

AS OF JUNE 30, 1959

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and
Cash Equivalents

Recsivables:
Intergovemnmental

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages

Due to Other Funds
Intergovemmental Payable

. Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for Encumbrances
Unreserved:
Undesignated

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Public 8chool Miscellaneous Venture Capital

Support Fund Local Grants Fund Fund Athletic Fund
$109,872 $5,323 $3,707 $119,380
0 4] 0 0
$109,872 $5,323 $3,707 $119,380
$6,927 %277 $134 $15,158
0 0 o 0
0 0 o 0
0 0 0 52
6,927 277 134 15,208
12,347 o 1,794 69,058
80,598 5,046 1,779 35,114
102,945 5,046 3,673 104,172
$109,872 $5,323 $3,707 $119,380




Phonics Professional Financial Management SchoolNet
Auxiliary Services Demonstration Davelopment Literacy Information Professional
Fund Fund Fund Fund System Fund Devslopment Fund
$38,289 $71 $3,185 0 $7.555 $27,827
0 0 o) 4] 4] 0
$38,289 M $3,185 $0 $7,555 $27,827
$5,193 $0 $453 $0 $31 $0
6,278 o] 0 o] 275 154
324 0 0 ¢ 0 0
6,107 o] 4] 0 378 4]
17,902 0 453 (o] 684 154
28,257 4] 2,732 0 25 186
(7,870) n 0 0 6,846 27,487
20,387 71 2,732 4] 6,871 27 673
$38,289 $71 $3,185 %0 $7,555 $27,827
Continued
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEEY
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

AS OF JUNE 30, 1999
(CONTINUED)

Assets:

Equity in Pocled Cash and
Cash Equivalenis

Receivables:
Intergovernmental

Total Assets

Llabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages

Due to Other Funds
Intergovernmental Payable

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for Encumbrances
Unraserved:
Undaesignated

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabiliies and Fund Balances

Texthooks/

instructional Materials Elsenhower Title VI-B Title |
Subsidy Fund Fund Fund Fund

$126,130 §14,683 $21,529 $21,775

0 0 15,554 25,394

$126,130 $14,683 $37,083 $47.169

$0 $0 $261 $0

¢ o] 15,317 32427

0] 4] 1,004 408

o 5 2,984 5,307

0 5 19,566 38,142

4] 4] 712 173

126,130 14,678 16,805 8,854

126,130 14,678 17,517 9,027

$126,130 $14,883 $37,083 $47,169
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Title VI Drug Free Public Schoo! Telecomm Act Miscellansous

Fund Schools Fund Preschool Fund FCC E-Rate Fund  Federal Grants Fund Totals
$2,617 $11,115 $0 $2,160 $0 $515,218
o 0 0 0 0 40,948
$2,617 $11,1185 $0 $2,160 $0 $556,166
§0 $0 50 $0 $0 $28,432
0 0 0 0 0 54 451
o o 0 0 o] 1,738
e 31 o] 0 17 14,881
0 3 a Q 17 99,500
1,693 0 0 o ¢ 116,977
924 11,084 0 2,160 (17} 339,689
2,617 11,084 0 2,160 (17) 456,666
$2,617 $11,115 $0 $2,160 $0 $556,166
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Hevenues:

Intergovemmenta!
[nterast

Tuition and Fees
Extracurricular Activities
Gilts and Donations
Miscallaneous

Totat Revenues
Expenditures:

Current:
Instruction:
Regular
Special
Support Sarvices:
Pupils
Instructional Staff
Administration
Cantral
Oparation of Non-Instructional Services
Extracurricular Activities
Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services
Other Uses of Funds:
Pass-through Payments

Tolal Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures

Fund Balances at June 30, 1998

Fund Bafances at June 30, 1999

Public Schoaol Miscellaneous Verniture Capital

Support Furd Loca! Grants Fund Fund Athlefic Fund
$0 $0 $50,000 $0
o} o 0 0
20,844 0 a 0
191,633 350 0 262,264
52,841 315 0 5,870
3,206 25,365 0 349
268,524 26,030 50,000 268,483
219,803 15,563 58,124 0
199 o 0 0
156 1} 0 [¢]
Q 5,513 o 1]
a 0 Q Q
0 o o 0
0 0 ¢] 0
20,029 2,243 0 359,223
o 0 0 48
1} 0 , 1} 0
240,287 23,319 - 58,124 359,271
28,237 2.mM 8,124) (90,788)
74,708 2,335 11.697 184,860
$102,945 $5,046 $3,573 $104,172




Phonics Professional Financlal Management SchoolNet
Auxiliary Services Demonstration Development Literacy Information Professional
Fund Fund Fund Fund System Fund Devalopment Fund
$112,409 $5,000 $19,224 $0 $12,468 $10,000
1,306 ] 0 0 4] 0
Q Q0 Q 0 1] 0
[} 4] ) [¢] Q [+]
0 [} 0 1] 0 )
3,148 0 0 0 0 0
116,861 5,000 19,224 1] 12,468 10,000
0 2,091 1} 30,425 0 0
0 0 453 0 4] Q
Q 0 g 0 Q 0
s} 4,519 17,791 18,000 1] 5,767
4] 0 83 1] 4] 0
0 0 0 ] 11,697 25,282
117,092 4] 0 (1] [+} 1]
0 [#] 0 0 [4] 0
1] 0 0 [} 0 0
0 0 785 0 0 4}
117,092 8,610 19,122 48,425 11,897 31,049
(231) (1,810) 102 (48,425) 7T (21,049)
20,618 1,681 2,630 48,425 6,100 48,722
$20,387 $71 $2,732 0 $6,871 $27.673
Continued
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1959

{CONTINUED)

Revenues:

Intargovernmental
Interest

Tuition and Fees
Extracurricular Activities
Gifts and Ponations
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues
Expenditures:

Current:
Instruction:
Regular
Special
Support Senvices:
Pupils
Instructional Statf
Administration
Central
Operation of Non-Instructional Services
Extracurricular Activities
Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services
Cther Uses of Funds:
Pass-through Payments

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under} Expenditures

Fund Balances at June 30, 1998

Fund Balances at June 30, 1999

Textbooks/
Instructional Materials Eisenhowar Title Vi-B Title §
Subsidy Fund Fund Furd Fund
$63,804 $14,997 $155,540 $267,221
4] 0 4] o
1] 0 [} 0
0 0 o 0
0 0 ¢ 0
0 [+ o 1]
63,894 14,597 155,540 267,221
0 3,437 0 0
4] 0 99,388 285,180
0 o] 21,357 0
0 716t 1] 0
0 o] 23,182 o}
0 ¢} 0 1)
0 0 4,444 5379
0 0 0 0
0 4] 0 [}
0 0 0 o
0 10,598 148,381 290,559
63,804 4,399 7,159 (23,338)
62,236 10,279 10,358 32,365
$126,130 $14678 $17.517 §9,027
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Miscellaneous

Title VI Drug Free Public School Telocornm Act Federal

Fund Schools Fund Preschool Fund FCC E Rate Fund Grants Fund Totals
$16,696 $18,222 $3,549 $2,160 $10,086 $762,466
0 c 0 ] 0 1,306
0 0 0 0 0 20,844
o 0 0 ] ] 454,247
Q ] ! 0 0 52,026
0 ] 0 0 0 32,066
16,696 19,222 3,549 2,160 10,086 1,329,955
o 0 a 0 4,533 334076
0 0 ] 0 0 $85,230
2,000 8,932 8,787 Q 3,385 51,624
9,427 0 0 0 6,230 74,408
0 0 o 0 0 23,275
0 o 0 0 0 36,979
803 ] ] 0 0 127,718
] 0 ] 0 o 381,495
] ] 0 0 ] 48
0 0 o 0 0 785
18,230 8,939 8,787 ] 14,148 1,415,638
(2,534) 10,283 {5,238) 2,160 (4,062) (85,683)
5,151 801 5,238 o 4,045 542,349
$2517 $11,084 $0 $2,160 17 $456,6586
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOQL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL {NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
PUBLIC SCHOOL SUPPORT FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Uniavprable]
Revenues:
Tuition and Fees $20.844 820,844 1]
Extracurricular Activities 191,634 191,634 0
Gifts and Donztians 52,8411 52,841 o
Miscellanecus 825 825 0
Total Revenues 266,144 266,144 0
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction: _
Regular:
Salaries 248 248 o
Fringe Benefits 35 35 1]
Purchased Services 71,838 71,838 0
Materials and Supplies 100,089 100,089 a
Capital Quilay - New 11,501 11,501 o)
Caphial Cutlay - Replacernent 177 177 [
Other 52,503 52,503 0
Total Rregular 236,381 236,34 0
Special:
Materials and Supplies 45 45 [+]
Other 155 155 ]
Total Special 260 200 Q
Support Services:
Pupils:
Salaries 124 124 0
Fringe Benefits 17 17 0
Materials and Supplies 15 t5 1]
Total Pupils 158 156 o
Extracurrcular Activities:
School 2nd Public Service Co-Curcitar Activities:
Purchased Services 2,691 2,691 0
Matarizls and Supplies 618 618 ¢]
Other d 17.77¢ 17,770 o}

Total Extracurricular Activities 21,079 21,079 ]

Total Expenditures 257,825 257,826 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expanditures 8,318 8,318 0
Other Financing Sources {Useas);
Refund of Pror Year Expenditures 2,382 2.382 i}
Refund of Prior Year Receipts (12) (12} o]
Total Other Finanging Sources (Uses) 2,370 2,370 [}
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues and Other Financing -

Sources Qver (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Use: 10,688 10,688 o}
Fund Balance at June 30, 1998 85,098 65,098 o
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 5,677 15,677 0
Fund Balance at June 30, 1993 $91,463 $91,463 S0
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LEBANON CITY SCHQOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
MISCELLANEQUS LOCAL GRANTS FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1989

Revenues:
Extracurricular Activilies
@ifts and Donations
Miscellanequs
Tota! Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
instruction:
Regular:
Purchased Servicas
Materials and Supplies
Capital Qutlay - Naw
Cther
Total Regular
Support Services:
Instructional Stafi.
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Total Instructional Staff
Extracurricular Acstivities:
Occupation Orented Activities:
Purchased Services
Capital Outlay - New
Other
Total Extracurricular Activitles

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficlency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Refund of Prior Year Receipts

Total Other Financing Scurces (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Expendltures and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balance at June 30, 1998

Prior Year Encumbrrances Appropriated

Fund Balance at June 30, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$350 $350 %0
316 315 8]
25,365 25,365 C
26,030 26,030 0
6,474 6,474 4]
8,705 8,705 o]
201 201 2]
180
15,660 16,380 0
2,088 2,098 o
3,624 3,624 [}
5,722 5,722 0
36 36 <}
507 507 0
1,701 1,701 o
2,244 2,244 0
23,526 23,348 Q
2,504 2,684 180
(97) (97) 0
(87} (97) 0
2,407 2,407 [V
2,342 2,342 0
297 297 0
$5,046 35,048 50
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
VENTURE CAPITAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Total Revenuas
Expenditures:
Current:
nstruction:
Regular:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Qutlay - New
Total Reguiar

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under} Expenditures
Fund Balance at June 30, 1998 :
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balance at June 30, 15389

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorabie)

$50,000 $50,000 $0
50,000 50,000 0
18,118 18,118 0
2,537 2,537 0
17,877 17,677 v}
5,440 5,440 0
17,043 17,043 0
60,815 80,815 0
60,815 60,815 0
(10,815) {10,815) 0
11,798 11,798 ¢
785 795 0
$1,778 $1,778 $0
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
ATHLETIC FUND '

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Revenues:

Extracurricuiar Activities
Gifts and Donations

Total Revenues
Expendituras:
Curmrent:

Extracurricular Activities:
Sports Oriented Activities:
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Qutlay - New
Qther

Total Sports Criented Activities

Capital Qutlay:
Building Acquisition & Cohstruction Service:
Capital Qutlay ~ New

Total Capital Outiay

Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Cther Financing Sources (Uses):

Hefund of Prior Year Expenditures
Refund of Prior Year Receipts

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Qver (Under) Expenditures
and Gther Financing Uses

Fund Balance at June 30, 1898

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balance at June 30, 19839

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

$262,263 $262,263 $0
5,870 5,870 ¢
268,133 268,133 0
89,120 89,120 ¢
95,388 95,386 0
168,708 168,706 0
72,212 72,212 o]
425,424 425,424 0
48 48 0
48 48 ]
425,472 425,472 Q
{157,338) {157,339) 0
348 348 4]
{8,706) {8,706} 0
{8,358) {8,358) 0
{165,6597) {165,657} 0
177,102 177,102 0
24,698 24,698 0
$38,103 $36,103 $0
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL {NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
AUXILIARY SERVICES FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Revenues:

Intergovernmental
Interest

Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Operation of Non-Instructional Services:
Community Services:
Salaries
Fringa Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Qutlay - New
Total Community Services

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing (Uses):

Refund of Prior Year Expenditures

Total Other Financing (Uses)

Excess (Deficlency) of Revenues and Other Financing
Uses Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance at June 30, 1998
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriatad

Fund Balance at June 30, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorabie

Budget Actual {(Unfavorahle)
$112,408 $112,4G8 $G
1,306 1,306 0
113,714 113,714 0
40,172 40,172 0
8,283 8,283 4]
14,544 14,544 0
75,168 75,188 D
2,875 2,875 0]
141,050 141,050 ¢]
141,050 141,050 0
{27,3386) (27.,336) 0
3,146 3,148 0
3,146 3,146 0
(24,190) {(24,180) 0
28,925 28,925 o]
104 104 0
4,839 4,839 0
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
PHONICS DEMONSTRATION FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
fnstruction:
Regular:
Salaries
Fringe Benefits
Materials and Supplies
Total Reguiar
Support Services:
Pupils:
Purchased Services
Other
Total Pupils

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Fund Balance at June 30, 1998
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balance at June 30, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

$5,000 $5,000 $0
5,000 5,000 0
300 300 0]
42 42 0]
1,748 1,748 D
2,081 2,081 ¢
1,981 1,981 0
2,538 2,538 0
4,519 4,519 Q
8,610 6,610 0
(1,610) {(1,610) 0
1,681 1,881 0
0 0 ¢]
$71 71 $0
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Ravanues:
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Expenditures;
Current:

Support Services:
Instructional Staff:
Salaries

Fringe Benefis
Purchased Services
Materlals and Supplies
Total instructional Staff
Administration:

Salaries

Fringe Benedils

Total Administration
Other Uses of Funds:

Pass-through Payrments

Total Other

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenuss Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance at June 30, 1998
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balance at June 30, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)

$19,223 $19,223 $0
19,223 18,223 Q
4,690 . 4,680 0
672 672 4]
14,109 14,109 0
1,504 1,504 o]
20,975 20,975 0
82 82 0
11 11 0
g3 g3 0
785 785 0
785 785 0
21,853 21,853 0
(2,830) (2,630} 0
2,339 2,339 0
291 291 0
%0 $0 $0
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FINANCIAL LITERACY FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable}
Total Revenues $0 $0 §0
Expenditures:
Current:
instruction:
Regular:
Materials and Supplies 33,211 33,211 0
Total Regular 33,211 83,211 0
Support Services:
Pupils:
Purchased Services 18,000 18,000 0
Total Pupiis 18,000 18,000 0
Total Expenditures 51,211 51,211 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Qver (Under) Expenditures (81,211) (51,211) y]
Fund Balance at June 30, 1988 27,255 27,255 4]
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 23,956 23,9586 0
Fund Balance at June 30, 1999 $0 $0 $0
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1939

Revenues:

Intergovernmental

Total Revenues
Expenditures:

Current:

Support Services:

Central:

Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Matertals and Supplies
Capital Cutlay - New

Total Central

Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Fund Balance at June 30, 1998

Fund Balance at June 30, 1998

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$12,468 $12.4868 50
12,468 12,468 0
7,314 7,314 0
1,938 1.938 0
148 148 0
2,395 2,395 0
11,795 11,785 0
11,785 11,795 0
673 673 0
6,826 6,826 0
$7,499 $7,499 §0
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SCHOOLNET PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorabie)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $10,000 $10,000 S0
Total Revenues 10,000 10,000 o
Expenditures:
Current;
Support Services:
Instructional Staff:
Saiaries 4,989 4,989 0
Fringe Benefits 777 777 0
Total Instructional Staff 5,766 5,766 0
Support Services:
Central:
Purchased Services 519 519 o]
Materials and Supplies 5,191 5,181 ¢
Capital Qutiay - New 33,132 33,132 0
Total Central 38,842 38,842 0
Total Expenditures 44,608 44,608 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures {34,608) (34,608) 0
Fund Balance at June 30, 1998 52,062 52,082 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 10,188 10,188 4]
Fund Balance at June 30, 1999 $27.642 $27,642 $0

H
H
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
TEXTBOOKS/ANSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS SUBSIDY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Variance

Revised Favorable

Budget Actual {Unfavorabie)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $63,895 $63,885 $0
Totat Revenues 63,895 63,895 0
Total Expenditures g g 0
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 63,895 63,895 0
Fund Balance at June 30, 1998 62,236 62,236 0
Fund Balance at June 30, 1999 $126,131 $12§,1 31 $0




LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GRAP BUDGETARY BASIS}
EISENHOWER FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Variance
Revised Favaorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenhues:
Intergovernmental 514,997 $14,987 $0
Totai Aevenues 14,997 14,997 0
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regulan
Materials and Supplies 3,437 3,437 o
Total Regular: 3,437 3,437 0
Support Services:
Instructionai Staff;
Salaries and Wages 2,883 2,883 0
Fringe Benefits 419 418 (9]
Purchased Services 3,859 3,858 0
Tatal Instructional Staif 7.161 7,161 0
Total Expenditures 10,698 10,588 L
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures - 4,399 4,399 U]
Fund Balance at Juna 30, 1998 8,787 9,787 0
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 487 487 0
Fund Balance at June 30, 1299 $14,883 $14,683 $0




LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
TITLE VI-B FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actuai {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $139,986 $139,986 $0
Total Revenues 139,986 139,986 0
Expenditurgs:
Currant:
Special:
Salaries and Wagss 75,178 75,178 [}
Fringe Bensfits 19,679 19,679 0
Purchased Services 2,834 2,834 0
Materials and Supplies 1,230 1,230 v,
Total Special 98,921 98,921 0
Support Saervices:
Pupils:
Salarias and Wages 17,297 17,297 4]
Fringe Benefits 2,802 2,802 0
Matarials and Supplies 127 127 0
Total Pupils 20,226 20,226 - o]
Administration:
Salaries and Wages 17,422 17,422 0
Fringe Benefits 3,189 3,188 1]
Purchased Services 1,047 1,047 0
Matarials and Supplies 246 248 0
Capital Outiay - New 2,100 2,100 0
Total Administration 24,004 24,004 0
Current:
Operation of Non-Instructional Services:
Community Services:
Purchased Services 4,444 4,444 4]
Total Community Services 4,444 4,444 0
Total Expenditures 147,595 147,595 0
Excess (Dsficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (7,609) (7.608) 0
Fund Balancs at June 30, 1998 28,165 28,165 0
Fund Balance at June 30, 1999 $20,556 $20,556 $0




LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
TITLE | FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1939

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Expenditures:

Current:
Instruction:
Speciai:
Saiaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Materiais and Supplies
Capital Outlay - New

Total Special

Operation of Non-instructicnal Services:
Community Services:
Salaries
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Suppiies

Total Community Services

Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance at June 30, 1998

Fund Balance at June 30, 1989

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$264,104 $264,104 $0
264,104 264,104 0
239,026 239,026 0
36,510 38,510 0
1,185 1,185 0
3,208 3,206 0
1,276 1,276 0
281,203 281,203 0
5,578 5,578 0
525 525 0
81 81 0
56 56 0
6,240 6,240 0
287,443 287,443 0
(23,339) (23,339) )
44,941 44,941 0
$21,602 $21,802 $0
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL {(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
TITLE VI FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:

Support Services:

Pupils:
Purchased Services

Total Pupils

Instructional Staff:
Materials and Supplies

Total Instructional Staff
Operation of Non-Instructional Services:
Community Services:

Materals and Supplies

Total Community Services

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Fund Balance at June 30, 1998
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balance at June 30, 1999

Variance
Revised Faverahie
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$16,696 $16,626 $0
16,696 16,696 0
9,000 8,000 0
9,000 9,000 . 0
12,044 12,044 0
12,044 12,044 0
803 803 0
803 803 0
21,847 21,847 0
{5,151) (5,151} 0
1,645 1,645 0
4,429 4,429 0
$923 $923 $0
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL BISTRICT, OHIOQ

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
DRUG FREE SCHOOLS FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental 319,223 $19,223 $0
Total Revenues 19,223 19,223 0
Expenditures:
Current;
Support Services:
Pupils:
Salaries and Wages 8,627 8,827 [}
Fringe Benefits 1,630 1,630 0
Purchased Services 385 385 o
Materials and Supplies 336 338 o
Total Pupils 10,978 10,878 0
Tetal Expenditures 10,978 10,878 0
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 8,245 8,245 0
Fund Balance at June 30, 1998 ’ 2,870 2,870 0
Fund Balance at June 30, 19932 $11,115 $11,115 $0




LEBANON CIiTY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
PUBLIC SCHOOL PRESCHOOL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Support Services:
Pupils:
Purchased Services
Total Pupils

Totat Expenditures

Excass (Deficiency) of Revenues Over {Under} Expenditures
Fund Balance at June 30, 1998

Fund Balance at June 30, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorabie)

$3,648 $3,549 $0
3,548 3,549 0
8,787 - 8,787 0
8,787 8,787 0
8,787 ' 8,787 0
{5.238) (5,238) o]
5,238 5,238 0
$0 $o $0
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIC

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS}
TELECOM ACT - FCC E-RATE FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Varlance

Revised Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $2,160 $2,160 50
Total Revenues 2,160 2,180 0
Total Expenditures 0 0 g
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 2,160 2,160 0
Fund Balance at Jung 30, 1998 0 0 o]
Fund Balance at June 30, 1999 $2,160 $2,160 S0
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, QHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL {(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS}
MISCELLANEOUS FEDERAL GRANTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1899

Variance
Revised Favarable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable}
Revenuegs:
Intergovernmental ‘ $10,087 $10,087 80
Total Bevenues 10,087 10,087 0
Expenditures:
Current:
instruction:
Regular:
Salaries and Wages 186 188 e
Fringe Benefits 26 26 o)
Purchased Services 275 275 0
Materials and Supplies 3,277 3,277 Q
Total Regular 3,764 3,764 0
Support Services:
Pupils:
Salaries and Wages g2 52 0
Purchased Services 3,323 3,323 v}
Total Pupils 3,385 3,385 0
Instructional Staft:
Salaries and Wages 260 2860 0
Fringe Benetits 14 14 0
Purchased Services 761 761 0
Materials and Supplies 5,172 5172 0
Total Instructional Staff 8,207 8.207 Q
Total Expenditures 13,386 13,356 0
Excess {Deliciency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures {3,269) {3.289) g
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Refund of Prior Year Receipis (777) (777) 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) {777) (777) a
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Qver (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Use: (4,0486) {4,046) o
Fund Balance at June 30, 1988 - 4,048 4,046 o]
Fund Balance at June 30, 1999 ‘ $0 30 $0
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DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and
the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs.
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LEBANON CITY SCHQOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL {(NON-GAAF BUDGETARY BASIS)
DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1998

Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest
Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:

Support Services:

Administration:
Other

Total Administration

Fiscal:
Cther

Total Fiscal
Total Support Services
Debt Service:

Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Debt Service

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers - In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balance at June 30, 1998

Fund Balance at June 30, 1999

Variance
Revised Favarable

Budyet Actual (Unfavorable)
$1,329,208 $1,329,209 $0
165,679 165,679 0
108,612 108,612 0
1,601,500 1,601,500 0
2,205 2,205 ¢]
2,205 2,208 0
19,783 19,783 0
19,783 19,783 o]
21,388 21,988 o]
1,264,000 1,264,000 0
208,718 208,718 0
1,472,718 1,472,718 0
1,494,706 1,494,706 Q
106,794 106,794 0
242,085 242,055 0
242,055 242,055 0
348,849 348,849 0
1,769,450 1,769,450 a
$2,118,299 $2,118,298 $0




CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by
proprietary funds and trust funds). The following are descriptions of each Capital
Projects Fund:

Capital Projects:

To account for the District’'s 2.0 mill, 5-year Permanent Improvement property tax levy
passed in 1998.

SchoolNet:

To account for state funds designed to help school districts obtain computers and
refated educational technology equipment and/or the necessary infrastructure for
educational technology.

73



LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, QHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

AS OF JUNE 30, 1999

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and

Cash Eguivalents
Receivables:
Taxes

Total Asseis

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

intergovernmental Payable

Deferred Revenue

Total Liahilities

Fund Balances;

Reserved for Property Tax Advances
Reserved for Encumbrances

Unreserved:
Undesignated

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Capital Projects

Fund SchooiNet Fund Totals
$487,331 $177,473 $664,804
779,343 0 779,343
$1,266,674 $177,473 $1,444,147
$39,285 %0 $39,285
0 g 9
730,303 0 730,303
769,588 9 769,597
49,040 0 49,040
274,946 15,725 280,671
173,100 161,739 334,839
497,086 177,464 674,550
$1,266,674 $177,473 $1,444,147
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LEBANCN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, ORIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENBITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Capital Projects
Fund SchoolNet Fund Totals
Revenues:
Taxes $654,205 $0 $654,205
Intergovemmental 77,119 389,194 466,313
Investment 17,078 0 17,078
Total Revenues 748,402 380,194 1,137,596
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction:
Regular 88,497 280,471 368,968
Support Services:

Administration 1,308 0 1,309

Fiscal 8,510 o} 8,510

Operation and Maintenance of Plant 63,091 o] 63,091

Cenfral 0 4,294 4,294
Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services 267,209 0 287,209
Totat Expenditures 423,616 284,765 714,381
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 318,786 104,429 423,215
Fund Balances at June 30, 1998 178,300 73,035 251,335
Fund Balances at June 30, 1999 . $497,086 $177.464 $674,550
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOQL DISTRICT, OHIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Ravenuas:
Taxes
Intargovernmantal
[nterest
Total Revenuas
Expenditures:
Current:
ingtruction:
Regular:
Capital Qutlay - New
Tatal Repgular
Support Services:
Administration:
Cther

Totel Administration

Fiscal
Other

Total Fiscal
Operation and Maintenance of Plant:
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Cutlay - Aeplacement
Tote! Gperation and Mantenasce of Plant
Capital Outlay:
Site Improvement Services:
Capital Qutlay - Replacement
Building lmprovemant Services:
Purchased Services
Capital Qutlay - New
Total Capital Outlay

Tatal Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Bavenues Over {Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Advanges - Qut

Total Qther Financing Sourcas (Uses)

Excess (Deflciency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Qvar (Under) Expanditures and Other Finaneing Uses

Fund Balance at Jung 30, 1998
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balance at June 30, 1999

Reviged
Budget

$639,507
77,119
17,078

733,704

105,404

100,174
677

534,603

(130,825)

(180.039)
325,482
27,788

§193,231

Actual

$639,507
77,119
17.078

733,704

105,404

. 105,404

100,174
677
11,241

112,092

5,328

[29,214)

(130,825)

(130,825)

(160.039)

326,482

5193.231

Variance
Faverable
{Unfavorable)
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LEBANCN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
SCHOOLNET FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1899

Revenues:
intergovernmental
Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current;
Instruction:
Regular
Salaries
Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay - New
Total Regular
Support Services:
Central:
Purchased Services
Materals and Supplies
Capital Cutlay - New
Tatal Cantral

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficlency) of Revenues Cver (Under) Expenditures
Fund Balance at June 30, 1898
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Batance at June 30, 1899

Variance
Revised Favorable

Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
389,194 380,194 0
$389,194 $389,194 50
2,288 2,288 0
359 359 o]
3,030 3,030 4]
21,715 21,715 0
283,854 283,854 0
311,248 311,248 0
38 38 0

357 357 0
4,153 4,153 o
4,548 4,548 o]
315,794 315,794 0
73,400 73,400 Q
BD,6586 80,656 0
7,692 7,682 0
- $181,748 $161,748 §0
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in
a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the Board of
Education is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges, or where the Board of Education has decided that periodic
determination of revenues eamed, expenses incurred and/or net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability
or other purposes. The following are descriptions of each Enterprise Fund:

arvice:

To account for all revenues and expenses related to the food service operation for the
District.

niform Schogl lies:

To account for the purchase by students of necessary supplies, materials or other
school related items in addition to those items provided for general instruction.




LEBANOCN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS

AS QF JUNE 30, 1959

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Inventory Held For Resale

Materials and Supplies Inventory

Fixed Assets (Net of Accumuiated Depreciation}

Total Assels

Liabilities and Fund Equity:
Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Compansated Absences Payable

Due to Other Funds
intergovemnmental Payable

Deferred Revenue
Total Liabilities
Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital

Retained Eamings:
Unreserved {Deficit)

Total Fund Equity {Deficit)
Total Liabilities and Fund Equity

80

Food Service Unitorm School

Fund Supplies Fund Totals
§0 $36,929 $36,929
17,024 0 17,024
4,956 0 4,958
62,714 0 82,714
$84,604 $36,928 $121,623
$14,302 $9,447 $23,749
32,756 0 32,758
11,486 0 11,486
38,792 0 38,792
9,210 Q 9,210
108,546 9,447 115,993
29,439 o) 29,439
{51,291) 27,482 {23,809)
(21,852) 27,482 5,630
$84,694 $36,929 $121,623




LEBANON CITY SCHOCL DISTRICT, CHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1995

Operating Revenues:
Sales

Total Operating Revenues
QCperating Expenses:
Salaries

Fringe Benefits
Purchased Services
Waterials and Supplies
Cost of Sales
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses
Operating {Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues:

Federal Donated Commuodities
Qperating Grants

Total Non-Operating Revenues

Net {Loss} Before Operating Transfers
Operating Transfers - In

Net Income (Loss}

Retained Earnings (Deficit) at June 30, 1998

Retained Eamings (Deficit) at June 3Q, 1999

Food Service Uniform School
Fund Supplies Fund Totals
$765,331 $198,087 $963,428
765,331 198,087 863,428
347,626 0 347,626
117,674 0 117,674
95,601 0 95,601
61,091 0 61,081
413,442 201,844 615,286
5,174 0 5,174
1,040,608 201,844 1,242,452
{275,277 (3,747) {279,024)
45,656 1] 45,656
208,649 0 208,649
254,305 Q 254,305
(20,972) (3,747) (24,719}
7,633 20,192 27,725
{13,439) 16,445 3,006
(37,852} 11,037 (26,815)
($51,281) $27.482 (%23.809)




LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash Received from Customers

Cash Payments to Employees for Services
Cash Payments for Employee Benefits
Cash Payments for Purchased Services
Cash Payments for Materials and Supplies

Net Cash (Used for) Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:

Operating Grants Received
Operating Transfers - In

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities
Net increase (Decrease) in Cash andg Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30, 1958

Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30, 1899

Reconciliation of Operating (Loss) to Net
Cash {Used for) Operating Activities:

Operating (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating (Loss)
1o Net Cash (Used far) Operating Activities:

Depreciation

Donated Commodities Used During the Year

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory Held for Resale
{(Increase}/Decrease in Materials and Supplies Inventory
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payahle
Increase/(Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable
increasef{Decrease) in Dug to Other Funds
increase/{Decrease) in Deferred Revenue
Increase/(Decrease) in Intergovernmental Payable

Total Adjustments

Net Cash (Used for) Operating Activities

Food Service Uniform School
Fund Supplies Fund Totals
$765,331 $198,057 8063,428
(351,491) 0 (351,491)
(122,348) 0 {122,848)
(528,736) 0 (528,7386)
(1,5858) (202,662) (204,247}
{288,329) (4,565) (243,894)
208,650 0 208,650
7.533 20,192 27,725
216,183 20,192 238,375
(23,146) 15,627 (7,519}
23,146 21,302 44 448
30 $36,929 $38,929
(§275,277) (83,747} ($279,024)
5,174 g 5174
45,656 0 45,656
(1,259) 0 (1,259)
1,100 0 1,100
(4,373) {B18) (5,193)
{3,865) 0 (3,865)
2,692 0 2,682
{1.3089) o (1,309)
(7.866) o] (7,868)
35,948 (818) 35,130
{$239,329) ($4,565) ($243,854)
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOOD SERVICE FUND

FOR THE FiSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual {Uniavorable)
Revenues:
Sales $765,331 $765,331 $0
Operating Grants 208,649 $208,649 $o0
Total Revenues 973,980 973,980 0
Expenses:
Salaries:

Food Service Operations 351,491 351,481 0
Total Salaries 351,491 351,491 0
Fringe Benefits:

Food Service QOperations 122,848 122,848 Q
Total Fringe Benefits 122,848 122,848 0
Purchased Services:

Operation and Maintenance of Plant 872 872 0

Food Service Qperations 527,864 527,864 0
Total Purchased Services 528,736 528,736
Materials and Supplies:

Food Service Operations 1,585 1,885 0
Total Materials and Supplies - 1,585 1,585 0
Total Expenses . 1,004,660 1,004,660 o

Operating Incorna (Loss) (30,680) (30,680) 0
Operating Transfers - In 7,533 7,533 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Ovar (Under) Expenses (23,147) (23,147} o
Fund Equity at June 30, 1998 23,147 23,147 0
Fund Equity at June 30, 1989 $0 80 $0
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LEBANCN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, CHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
UNIFCRM SCHOOL SUPPLIES FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1399

Variance
Ravised ) Favorable
Budget Actual (Untavorable)
Revenues: }
Sales $198,097 $198,097 $0
Total Revenues 168,097 198,0é7 0
Expenses:
Matetials and Supplies:

Regular Instruction 222,832 222,832 g
Total Materials and Supplies 222,832 222.832 0
Total Expenses 222,832 222,832 0
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenses (24.735)7 (24,735) 0
Operating Transfers - In 20,192 20,192 0
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues and Operating
Transfers Qver (Under) Expenses (4,543) (4,543) 0
Fund Equity at June 30, 1998 5,454 5,454 g
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated 15,847 15,847 0
Fund Equity at June 30, 1999 $16,758 $16,758 30

Il
i
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

internal Service Funds account for the financing of services provided by one department or
agency to another department or agency of the District or to another governmental unit on a
cost-reimbursement basis. The following are descriptions of each Intemal Service Fund:

n Cou veniie Detenti r:

To account for all tuition received from other funds and school districts and for all salaries,
fringe benefits, materials, and equipment expenditures incurred by the Warren County
Juvenile Detention Center Fund related to services provided to other funds and school
districts.

E e fits Self-1 e:

To account for all premiums received and for all claims and administrative costs paid by the
District for employee medical and dental insurance. The Employee Benefits Self-Insurance
Fund accounts for monies received from other funds as payment for providing medical and
dental insurance. The Employee Benefits Self-Insurance Fund reimburses employees
who have paid providers, and makes payments for claims, administration, stop-loss
coverage and for reinsurance.




LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
AS OF JUNE 30, 1999

Assets:
Equity in Poocled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables:
intergovemmental
Due From Other Funds
Fixed Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

Total Assets

Liabifities and Fund Equity:
Accrued Wages

Bue to Other Funds
Intergovernmental Payable
Claims Payable

Total Liabilities

Fund Equity:

Retained Earnings:
Unreserved

Total Fund Equity

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity

Warren County
Juvenile Detention

Employee Benefits

Center Fund Self-Insurance Fund Totals
$274,276 $749,502 31,023,778
5,673 0 5,673
0 118,143 118,143
1,749 o] 1,749
$281,698 $6867,645 $1,149,343
$17,976 30 517,978
2,678 D 2,676
4,176 +] 4,176
0 224,449 224,443
24,828 224,449 249,277
256,870 643,196 900,066
256,870 843,196 800,066
$281,698 3867,845 $1,149,343
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1989

Warren County
Juvenile Detention

Employee Benefits

Center Fund Self-Insurance Fund Totals

Operating Revenues:

Tuition $202,226 $0 $202,228
Charges for Services 0 1,400,224 1,400,224
Total Operating Revenhuss 202,226 1,400,224 1,602,450
Operating Expenses:

Salarigs 100,499 0 100,499
Frings Benafits 83,178 0 63,178
Purchased Services 14,109 158,124 172,233
Materlals and Supplies 3,424 1,745 5,169
Depreciation 87 0 87
Claims 0 1,249,248 1,249,248
Total Operating Expenses 181,297 1,408,117 1,680,414
Cperating [ncome 20,929 (8,893) 12,036
Non-Operating Revenues:

investment 0 28,271 29,271
Total Non-Operating Revenuss 4] 28,271 28,271
MNet Income 20,929 20,378 41,307
HRetained Earnings at June 30, 1598 235,941 622,818 858,759
Retained Earnings at June 30, 1999 $258,870 $643,196 $900,066
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LEBANCN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, QHIC
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1989

Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Tuition Payments
Cash Raceived from Other Operations
Cash Payments to Employees for Services
Cash Paymens for Employee Benefits
Cash Payments far Claims

Cash Payments for Purchased Services
Cash Payments for Materials and Supplies

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Paymenis for Capital Acquisitions

Net Cash {Used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Investment Revenue

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30, 1998
Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30, 1999
Regoncifiation of Operating Incorae to Met Cash
Pravided by Operating Activities:

QOperating Inceme (Loss)

Adjustments to Recancile Operating income to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase)/Decreass in Intergovermmental Receivable
({increase)/Decrease in Due From Other Funds
increase/(Decrease} in Aceruad Wages
increase/(Decrease) in Due to Other Funds
Increase/{Decrease) in Intergovernmental Payable
Increase/(Decrease} in Claims Payable

Total Adjustments

Met Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Warren County
Juvenile Detention

Employee Benefits

Genter Fund Self-Insurance Fund Totals

5248,248 $0 $246,248

Q 1,406,652 1,408,652
(120,372) ¢ {(120.372)
(44,701) o (44,701)
i} (1,224,471) {1,224,471)
{14,109) (158,124) {172,233)
(3,424) (1,745) {5,169)

© 63,642 22,312 85,054
(1,836) 0 {1,836)
{1,8386) a (1,836)

[} 29,271 29,271

0 29,271 29,271

61,808 51,583 113,389

_ 212,470 607,919 910,388
$274,276 $749,502 $1,023,778
==EFx - EEEEEET EEEmEEESSSESE=ZIDES
$20,929 ($8,893) $12,0386

87 0 87

44,022 0 44,022

0 6,428 6,428
{1,897} o) {1,897)

_ 441 o 441
80 o] B0

o} 24,777 24,777

42,713 31,205 73,918

$63,642 $22,312 $85,85

==w=a ====uT



LEBANON CITY SCHOQL DISTRICT, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
WARREN COUNTY JUVENILE DETENTION CENTER FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Tuition $2486,248 $248,248 §0
Total Revenues 246,248 246,248 0
Expenses:
Salaries:

Special instruction 120,372 120,372 0
Total Salaries 120,372 120,372 o}
Fringe Benefits:

Special Instruction 44,701 44 701 o
Total Fringe Bernefits 44,701 44,701 Q
Purchased Services:

Support Services - Administration 14,109 14,108 Q
Total Purchased Services 14,109 14,109 a
Materials and Suppties:

Special Instruction 2,949 2,949 0
Tota) Materials and Supplies - 2,948 2,849 0
Capital Qutlay:

Special Instruction 2,312 2,312 4]
Tota) Capital Cutlay 2,312 2,312 0
Total Expenses 184,443 184,443 Q
Excess of Bevanues Dver Expenses 1,805 81,805 v}
Fund Equity at June 30, 1998 212,470 212,470 0
Fund Equity at June 30, 1999 $274,275 $274,275 50
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LEBANGHN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHiQ

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SELF-INSURANCE FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for Services $1,406,191 $1,406,191 $0
$29,271 $29.271 &0
Refund of Prior Year Expenses 461 461 0
Total Revenues 1,435,023 1,435,923 o
Expenses:
Purchased Services:

Support Services - Centrat 158,124 158,124 4}
Total Purchased Services 158,124 168,124 0
Matarials and Supplies:

Suppornt Services - Central 1,744 1,744 0
Total Materials and Supplies 1,744 1,744 4}
QOther:

Medical and Dental Claims 1,224,471 1,224,471 0
Total Other 1,224,471 1,224,411 o
Total Expenses 1,384,335 1,384,339 ¢
Excess of Revenues Qver Expenses 51,584 51,584 0
Fund Equity at June 30, 1998 697,919 597,919 0
Fund Equity at June 30, 1899 $748,503 $749,503 &0
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee capacity
or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, or other
funds. These include Expendable Trust Funds, Nonexpendable Trust Funds, and
Agency Funds. The following are descriptions of each Fiduciary Fund:

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
Schoelarship:

To account for assets held by the District in a trustee capacity with specific agreements
as to how the funds will be disbursed.

NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND
Endowment:

To account for monies or securities which have been set aside as an investment. The
interest revenue is expended for scholarships, but the principal remains intact.

AGENCY FUNDS
mmer |
To account for monies withheld from non-certified employees during the school year to

offset their share of cost for medical and dental insurance premiums during the
summer months while they are on summer break.

Student Activity:

To account for those student activity programs which have student participation in the
activity and have students involved in the management of the program.
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LEBANON CITY SCHOQL DISTRICT, OHIO

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS
AS OF JUNE 30, 1988 .
Expendabie Nonexpendable
Trust Trust Agency-------
Scholarship Endowment Sumrmer Insurance
Fund Fund Fund
Assets:
Equity in Pocled Cash and
Cash Equivalents $1,842 $28,485 $5,741
Receivables: .

Accrued Interest 29 372 0

Total Assets $1,871 $28,857 T $5,741
Liabilities and Fund Balances: -
Liabilities:
Undistributed Monies $0 $0 $5,741
Due to Students 0 0 0
Total. Liabilities ) -0 a 5,741
Fund Balances:

Reserved for Contributions ] 8,312 o]

Unreserved:

Undesignated 1,871 19,545 0
Tota!l Fund Balances . 1,871 28,857 Q
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $1,871 $28,857 $5,741

Continued
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMBINING BALANGE SHEET

ALL FIDUGIARY FUNDS

AS OF JUNE 30, 1999

(CONTINUED)

Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and
Cash Equivalents
Recsivables:

Accrued Interest
Total Assets
Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Undistributed Monies
Due to Students

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances:
Reserved for Contributions
Unreserved:
Undesignated

Total Fund Balances

Total Liahilities and Fund Balances

Agency

Student Activity

Fund Totals
$65,386 $102,054
0 401
$65,986 $102,455
$0 $5,741
65,986 65,986
65,688 71,727
0 9,312
0 21,416
0 30,728
$65,986 $102,456
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

SUMMER INSURANCE

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Gash and Cash Equivalents
Total Assets

Liabilities:

Undistributed Monles

Total Uabilities

STUDENT ACTIVITY

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Assets

Liabilities:

Due to Students

Teotal Liabilities

TOTAL ALL AGENCY FUNDS

Assels:

Equity In Pooled Cash and Cash Equivatents
Total Assets

Liabilities:

Undistributed Monies
Due to Students

Total Liabilities

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
July 1, 1998 Additions Deductions June 30, 1959

$11,777 $5,747 $11,7383 $5,741
11,777 $5,747 $11,783 $5,741
$11,777 $5,747 $11,783 $5,741
511,777 §5,747 $11,783 35,741
$83,992 $137,300 $155,306 $65,886
$83,992 $137,300 $155,306 $65,986
$83,992 $137,3C0 $155,306 $65,986
$93,992 $137,300 155,308 $65,986
§95,769 $143,047 $167,089 $71,727
$95,769 $143,047 $167,089 $71,727
$11,777 $5,747 $11,783 $5,741
83,9962 137,300 155,306 65,986
$95,769 $143,047 $167,089 $71,727

a4



GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

This account group is used to account for all land, buildings, equipment, and vehicles
not used in the operations of the Proprietary Funds. The majority of the District’s
assets are reflected in the General Fixed Assets Account Group.
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, QHIO
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE
AS OF JUNE 30, 1998

General Fixed Asseis:

Land $975,486
Buildings 14,693,839
Fumiture and Equipment 3,543,956
Vehicles 1,999,406
Total General Fixed Assets $21,212,687

Investment in General Fixed Assets by source:

General Fund $856,131
Special Revenue Funds 371,518
Capital Projects Funds 11,863,046
Expendable Trust Funds 10,147
Agency Funds 4,559
Donations 178,860
Acquired Before July 1, 1892* 7,928,426
Total Investment in General Fixed Assets $21,212,687

*Represents older assets for which fund source cannot practically be obtained.

96



LEBANCN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FiXED ASSETS

BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
AS OF JUNE 30, 1999
Fumiture
and
Function Land Buildings Equipment Vehicles Total
Instruction:
Regular $230,060 $5,675,046 $2,175,763 £ $8,080,869
Special 4] a 56,041 o 56,041
Support Services:
Pupils 0 0 25,106 0 25,106
instructional Staft 0 0 154,546 0 154,546
Board of Education 0 0 3,030 o 3,030
Administration 0 0 156,417 0 156,417
Fiscal Services D 0 65,144 0 65,144
Business 0 0 14,291 0 14,291
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 2,000 7,827 121,734 84,881 196,142
Pupil Transportation ' 0 24,308 94,412 1,934,525 2,053,245
Central 0 0 182,314 0 182,314
Operation of Non-Instructional Services 0 o 2,819 0 8,819
Extracusricular Activities 0 94,096 191,760 0 285,856
Fagilities Acquisition and
Construction Services 743,426 8,892,862 283,579 0 9,920,867
Tatal General Fixed Assets $975,486  $14,693,839 $3,543,956 $1,999,4056  $21,212,687
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOQL DISTRICT, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN FIXED ASSETS

BY FUNCTION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1999

Balance at Balance at
Function June 30, 1998  Additions Deletions  June 30, 1999

Instruction:

Regular $7,750,362 $396,994 $66,487  $8,080,869

Special 54,386 1,655 0 56,041
Support Services:

Pupils 21,370 6,106 2,370 25,106

Instructional Staff 152,088 4,951 2,504 154,546

Board of Education 3,030 0 0 3,030

Administration 165,730 7,466 8,779 156,417

Fiscal Services 65,144 0 0 65,144

Business 11,060 3,231 o 14,291

Operation and Maintenance of Plant 196,060 210 828 196,142

Pupil Transportation 2,066,830 41,643 55,028 2,053,245

Central 158,799 62,813 29,298 182,314
Operation of Non-Instructional Services 9,139 680 0 9,819
Extracurricular Activities 160,434 125,422 0 285,856
Facilities Acquisition and

Construction Services 9,615,800 314,836 769 9,929,867
Total General Fixed Assetls $20,420,043 %956,707 $164,063 521,212,687
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STATISTICAL TABLES

The following unaudited statistical tables reflect social and economic data, financial
trends and fiscal capacity of the District.




LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO TABLE 1
GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)
1989 1988 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Figcal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
Instruction
Reguiar $10481,150 $9447,680 $9,074,349 $8,050,942 §7267.645 7137849 $6952518 $6452,004 $5834.424 $5235383
Special 1,004,530 564,384 864,330 830,895 807,103 821,989 814,158 513,093 534,113 487,160
Vocationat +] 0 0 0 35 37.448 35,042 34,578 68,502 38,206
Other Instruction 236,461 116,920 85,077 83,245 32,448 28,402 37,011 38,433 20,572 30,108
Support Saervices
Pupils 223111 794,923 714,520 880,123 821,576 615,653 571883 566,559 500,326 378,255
Instructional 1,003,996 785,587 B4R 241 453,747 405,437 401,952 368,726 366,481 314,615 254 468
Board of Education 35,645 38,333 30,535 0021 24,924 29,205 30,692 2204 22 505 15,368
Adrrinistration 1,793,433 1,515,813 1,307,847 1,272,240 1,195,089 1,232,700 1,233,049 1,065,244 910,820 864,419
Fiscal 534,601 482323 416,01 387,569 333,280 87,845 264,410 268,703 197,625 137,109
Business 128,993 132,144 89,592 82915 25,048 3,957 3,169 2,718 29,791 22,408
Maintenancs/Oparations 1,551,876 1,493,647 1,501,384 1,364,480 1,191,445 1,126,983 1,140,145 1,031,159 1,058,029 921,151
Pupil Transportation 1,457,646 1,361,744 1,311,953 967,301 922,470 882,055 B52.575 200,139 T42,700 B4E,623
Cantra! 122,304 91,147 136,754 56,894 26,508 25,105 25131 39,494 1285 108
Non-Instruglional Services 991 5952 3,786 6,458 7599 4,670 5,962 6,895 1,861 2721
Extracurricular Activities 379,515 349,774 267,657 273,404 243,537 252,847 244016 227,966 189,472 163,835
Facilities Acquisition 0 1,350 5,050 4,800 0 0 [s] 8,344 6,767 150
Debt Service 0 0 o 6,113 17,662 2,092 0 0 a 0
Total $19,654,252 $17,582,721 $16,457,086 $14,531,527 $13,121,776 $12,890,752 $12,679.387 $11,644,564 $10,442577 $9,.236571

Source: Lebanon Clty Schoo! District Financlal Records.

(1) 1983, 1994, 1995, 1956, 1097, 1688, 1699 fiscal years reported on GAAP basis; 2!l prior years reported on cash basis.

LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO TABLE2
GENERAL FUND REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)

1999 1998 1997 1996 1985 1884 1983 1992 1991 1990

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscaf Fiscal Fliseal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Frgcal
Taxes $9,188807 $8.492,596 S$8.366475 7844504  $6674473 $5276542 4580956 S$4,654,362 $4273363 $4,039.849
Intergovernmental 10,654,313 9,753,882 8,944,101 8,022,558 7410118 6,560,268 €,192,902 5,971,761 5552455 5,090,713
Investmant 363,858 319,569 258,847 168,857 87,497 185,001 184,925 120,352 229,398 259,515
Tuition and Fees 161,884 86,928 23,049 8,138 87,221 73,599 85474 45580 10,300 8,200
Rantals 0 Q 0 0 ] i} 0 250 475 883
Charges for Setvices 0 0 0 Q ¢ ] 0 Q 0 27
Miscellansous 158,845 152,969 53,191 67 622 63,544 62,082 53,825 26,930 137,811 39,708
Total $20,527.,717 $18,815,944 §1 T.M,m $16,111,769 $14,322,850 $12,157,492 $11,398,092 §$10,818,225 $10,203,762 $9.438,875

Sourca: Lebanon Gity Schodl Estrict Financial Records,

(1) 19493, 1934, 1335, 1996, 1997, 19458, 1993 fizcal years are raported on GAAP basis; alf prior years are reported on cash basis.
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO TABLE 3
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
REAL AND TANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY (1)
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS
Percent of Total Collection
Current Delinquent Total Current Current Levy Detinquent Total As a Percent of
Year {2) Levy Levy (3) Levy Collaction Collected Collection Collection Current Levy
1998 $11,858,841 $442,536 12,341,377 511,548,561 97.04% $358,200 $11,904,751 100.05%
1987 11,753,899 447 367 12,201,266 11,391,223 96.91% 370,332 11,781,555 100.97%
1986 16,709,130 435,700 11,144,830 " 10,435,163 97.44% 304,586 10,739,749 100.29%
1955 10,010,866 415,007 10,425,593 9,764,558 97.54% 264,582 10,C29,140 100.18%
1994 7.534,998 398,115 7,933,113 7,427,544 98.57% 290,941 7,718,485 102.44%
1993 6,791,121 450,808 7,241,929 6,599,781 97.18% 317,780 65,917,561 101.86%
1992 5,746,625 344,843 6,091,468 5,585,225 97.19% 184,443 5,769,668 100.40%
1981 5,079,209 Q 5,079,209 5,242,019 103.21% o} 5,242,019 103.21%
1990 4,824,909 0 4,824,909 4,869,417 100.82% 0 4,859,417 100.82%
1989 4,445,745 o] 4,445,745 4,685,366 103.14% Q 4,585,366 103.14%
Source: Warren County Auditor - Data is presented on & calendar year basis because that is the manner in which the Information is maintained by the County Auditor.
(1} Incluedas Homestead/Rollback taxes assessed locatly, but distributed through the State and reporied as Intergovernmental Revenue.
{2) Represents collection year. 1929 information cannet be presented because all collections have not been made by Jure 30.
(8} This amount cannot be calculated based on other information in this statistical table because of
retroactive additions and reductions which are brought on in one lump sum.
LEBANON CITY SCHOQL DISTRICT, QHIO TABLE 4
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS
Public Utility Tangible Personat
Real Property Personal Property Property Total
Estimated Estimated Estimaled Estimated
Assesgsed Actual Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Assessed Actuai
Year (1) Value Value Valueg Value Valuea Value Value Value Ratio
1999  $368,094,830 £1,051,699,514 $28,631,100  $114,524,400 $29,967,050 $119,868,240  $426,692,980 $1,286,092,154 33%
1998 342,775,310 979,358,029 28,547,430 ' 32,440,261 26,982,036 107,928,144 398,304,776 1,119,726,434 36%
1997 288,144,380 823,269,657 30,027,200 34,121,818 27,767,713 111,070,852 345,939,293 968,462,327 6%
1995 267,678,730 754,790,657 29,801,640 33,865,500 123,863,426 95,453,704 321,341,796 894,100,861 36%
1985 251,283,640 717,953,257 31,032,240 35,263,909 21,631,948 86,527,792 303,947,828 839,744,958 36%
1994 207,718,010 533,480,029 " 28,934,920 32,880,591 18,866,154 75,464,618 255,519,084, 701,825,236 36%
1993 199,964,620 571,327,486 22,643,318 25,731,043 19,558,991 78,238,964 242,167,229 675,298,493 6%
1982 156,968,130 562,766,086 20,185,010 © 22,937,511 20,063,139 77,165,919 237,216,279 662,869,516 36%
1991 165,969,220 474,197,771 17,168,500 . 19,507,386 17,366,250 64,318,444 200,501,970 558,024,602 36%
1990 158,086,700 451,576,286 16,214,430 . 18,425557 17,688,479 63,173,139 191,989,669 533,274,982 36%

Source: Warren County Auditor - Data is presented on a calendar year basis because that is the manner in which the information is maintained by the County Auditor.

{1} Represents tax collection year,
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
(PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUATION)

TABLE §

LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS
Entity 1998 1997 1996 1985 1994 1993 1982 19 1980 1989

Lebanon City School District $50.03 S51.13 $51.13 $51.13 $51.13 $44.62 $45,12 $40.90 $40.90 $40.60
Warren County 525 5.00 550 7.07 7.07 7.50 710 7.10 7.10 5.10
Wamen County Career Center 4.50 £.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 3.50
Warren-Clinton Mental Health 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Lebanon Corporation .32 g.32 6.52 6.62 6.62 670 6.80 6.95 7.05 7.36
Middletown Corporation 501 4,96 4.96 £.16 5.15 518 5.18 528 523 5.40
Mason Carporation T.38 1.87 1.89 1.89 1.89 1.0 1.40 1.80 1.90 2.10
Clearcraak Township 11.62 11.82 11.62 11.62 11.62 11.80 11.80 11.60 11.60 11.60
Salam Township 6.72 672 6.72 4.72 472 5.70 570 570 570 5.80
Turtlacraek Township 5.62 5.62 5.62 562 5.82 5.60 5.60 £.80 560 5.60
Union Township 820 520 520 620 6.20 620 820 520 520 570
Washington Township 478 478 478 4.78 4.18 376 3.76 3.76 3.76 3.86
‘Wayne Township To7 707 707 .07 7.07 7.05 525 7.95 525 5.45

Source: Warnen County Auditor - Data is presented on & calendar year basis because that is the mannar in which the infarmaticn is maintained by the County Auditor.

LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND QVERLAPPING GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT

AS OF JUNE 30, 1999
General Percamage Amount
Obilgaticn Debt Applicable 1o Applicabla 10
Jurisdiction Quistanding (2) School District (1) Schoof District

Direct:
Lebanon Clty School District $3,653,000 100.00% $3,653.000
Overlapping: .
Warren County 19,002,201 15.23% 2,884,035
City of Lebanon 14,288,224 94.60% 13,497,740
City of Mason T272,000 0.25% 18,180
City of Middletown 18,859,961 0.30% 56,580
City of Monroe 7227300 2.00% 151,045
Desrfield Township o 0.12% o
Union Township 80,000 2581% 15,368
Total £70,342,486 $20,205,947

EaEwESTErawe® ===

Source: Ohic Municipal Advisory Coundil,

(1) Parcentages were determinad by dividing the assessod valuation of the political subdivision located within
the boundaries of the District by the total assessed valuation of the subdivision. The valuations used were

for the 1998 cotlection yaar.

{2} The amount outstanding represants Genaral Obligation Bonds that are payable from proparty taxes.
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHtD TABLE 7
RATIO OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT TO
ASSESSED VALUE AND BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA
LAST TEN YEARS
General Ratio of
Otligation District Debt to MNet Debt
Year Bonded Debt Assessed Valug Population Assessed Value Per Capita
1999 $3,653,000 $426,692,980 21,071 0.86% $173
1998 $4,917,000 $398,304,776 21,071 1.23% 5233
1997 6,065,000 345,939,263 21,071 1.75% 288
1986 6,795,000 321,341,796 21,01 211% 322
1985 7,620,000 303,947,828 21,07 251% 362
1664 6,875,000 255,518,084 21,071 2.88% 328
1993 7,375,000 242,167,929 21,071 3.05% 350
1992 G 237,216,279 21,071 0.00% Qa
1981 o} 200,501,970 21,07 0.00% o}
1930 Q 191,589,669 21,07 0.00% 0
Source: Lebanen Chamber of Commerce and Lebanon Cly School District Financial Records.
LEBANCHN CITY SCHOQL DISTRICT, CHIO TABLE 8
COMPUATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
AS OF JUNE 30, 1999
Assessed Valuation $425,692,990
CVERALL DIRECT DEBT LIMITATION
Direct Debt Limitation ’ ’
9% of Assessed Valuation $3B,402,369
Amount Available in Debt Service Fund 2,118,299
Gross Indebledness 3,653,000
Less: Debt Exempt from Limitation 1,080,000
Debt Subject to $% Limitation (2,573,000)
Legal Debt Margin within % Limitation $37,947,668
UNVOTED DIRECT DEBT LIMITATION . )
Unvated Debt Limitation
0.1% of Assessed Valuation $426,693
Amount avajlable in Debt Service Fund
related to unvoted debt o
Gross Indebtedness Authorized by the Board Q
Less: Debt Exempt from Limitation 0
Debt Subject to 0.1% Limitation 0
Legal Debt Margin within 0.1% Limitation $426,603
e ———
ENERGY CONSERVATION BOND LIMITATION
Chio Revised Code Section 133.042
Debt Limitation
0.9% of Assessed Valuation $3,840,237
Energy Conservation Notes Autharized by the Board (1,080,000)
Legal Debt Margin within £.9% Limitation 52,760,237
EEEETEIRTToooR

Source: Lebangn City Schaot District Finarclal Records.
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LEBANON CITY SCHOQL DMSTRICT, OHIO TABLE S
RATIO GF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)

Ratic of Debt
Total Total Service io

Interest and Debt General Fund General Fund
Year Principal Fiscal Charges Service Expenditures Expenditures
1999 $1,264,000 $208,718 $1,472718 $19,654,262 7.49%
1898 1,148,600 262,727 1.410,727 17,682,721 8.02%
1987 1,020,000 300,547 1,320,547 16,467,086 8.02%-
1986 825,000 347,180 1,172,150 14,531,527 8.07%
1995 895,000 303,529 998,529 13,121,776 7.61% - -
1894 500,000 331,312 831,312 12,880,752 5.45% ST
1993 Q 272,445 V 272,445 12,579,387 2.17%
1992 0 o] 0 11,644,564 0.00% 7
1991 0 0 1] 10,442,577 0.00%
1890 0 0 [ 9,236,571 .00%

Source: Lebanen City School District Financia) Records.

(1} 1993, 1994, 1995, 1986, 1967, 1998, 1999 fiscal years are reporied on GAAP basis; all prior years are reported on cash basis.

LEBANGON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO TABLE 10
PROPERTY VALUE, FINANCIAL INSTITUITION DEPOSITS AND BUILDING PERMITS
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS :

Property Value of

Value County Bank City Bank Building
Year (Real Estate Only) Deposits (1) Deposits {1) Permits lssued (2)
1998 $342,775,310 $524,246,000 $433,072,DQO $31,326,951
1997 288,144,380 523,585,000 427,735,000 32,204,227
1996 267,676,730 465,584,000 379,213,000 25,993,285
1995 251,283,840 460,950,000 370,414,000 29,040,394
19984 207,718,010 422,581,000 346,078,000 30,725,199
1893 199,964,620 411,164,000 333,849,000 13,257,513
1992 196,968,130 367,097,000 305,529,000 12,774,111
18991 165,969,220 342,162,000 236,605,000 9,077,879
1990 158,086,700 309,303,000 210,652,000 14,574,449
1989 151,957 480 305,287,000 185,600,000 12,104,458

Sources:
(1) Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland. Amounts are as of June 30.
(2) City of Lebanon Building Depariment. 104



LEBANCN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS

TABLE 11

Assessed Percent of Total
Name of Taxpayer Type of Business Value {1) Assessed Value
Cincinnati Gas and Electric Public Utility $12,322,700 2.89%
CNG Transmission Public Utility 5,949,620 1.38%
United Telephone Public Utility 5,570,270 1.31%
Seuthern Ohio Gun District, Inc. Gun Distributor 2,838,490 0.67%
Johnson and Hardin Enterprises Commercial Printer 2,750,340 (.65%
Fujitec Ametica, Ing. Manufacturer of Elevators 2,313,380 0.54%
Haris Plaza Partners Strip Mal! 1,894,990 0.44%
Lebanon Park Towne Homes Real Estate Develcper 1,669,190 0.39%
Texas Eastemn Transmission Public Utility 1,579,880 0.37%
Don Leathery Retail Store 1,205,530 0.28%
Sub-Total 36,104,490 8.93%
All others 388,588,500 91.07%
Grand Total $426,692,990 100.00%
Source: Warren County Auditor.
{1) Assessed values are for the 1999 collection year,
LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO TABLE 12

LARGEST EMPLOYERS
Number
Empicyer Type of Business of Employees

County of Warren County 720
Lebanon Correctional Institute Prison 510
Otterbein Home Retirement/Adult Day Care Center 430
Lucas Sumitome Brakes Manufacturer of brakes 410
Lebanon City School District School 404
Johnson and Hardin Enterprises Commerclal Printer 362
Fuijitec Ametica, inc. Manufacturer of elevators 325
Warren County Correctional institute  Prison 320
Amtex Inc. Molder of autemobile carpeting 250
Cinmar L.P. Mai! order catalogue 240

Source: Lebanon Chamber of Commerce.
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LEBANON CITY SCHOGL DISTRICT, ORIC TABLE 13
COST TO EDUCATE A 1999 GRADUATE
All Funds Cost Per Pupil
Schock Year Girade Lebancn CSD (1) State Average (1) Comparison (1}
1998-89 (2} 12 $5,244 $6.642 ($1,398)
1997.98 (2) 11 4,932 5,985 ($1,053)
1996-97 (3) 10 4,667 5,932 {1,272)
1995-85 g 4,248 5,545 (1,297)
1994-95 8 3,897 5117 (1,220)
1993-94 7 3,939 4,582 (943)
1992-93 6 3943 ‘4,822 (879)
1991-82 5 3,705 4,436 (731)
1990-81 4 3,391 4,390 (999)
1989-80 <] 3,073 4,166 (1.093)
1988-89 2 2,802 3,852 {9860)
1987-88 1 2,857 3,563 {7086)
1986-87 K 2,713 3,337 (624)
$49,501 $62,676 ($13,175)
Source: Lebanon City Schaol District Financial Hecordé.
(1) Reported on a cash basis.
{2) The Department of Education adopted a new calculation for per pupil spending.
Beginning in 1997-88, per pupil spending Is based upon the department's expenditures flow maodel,
{3) Prior year's amounts have been rastatad to reflect current available information.
LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO TABLE 14

ENROLLMENT PROJECTIONS

NO NEW HOUSING STARTS APPROVED BY CITY OR TOWNSHIPS FROM 1956 PROJECTION

ACTUAL K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 TOTAL
1992-93 301 331 287 2¥8 279 280 295 281 267 255 241 223 231 3,549
1963-94 285 939 297 280 285 299 272 305 291 260 260 240 212 3627
1984-95 310 3J22 328 296 310 297 297 313 313 284 266 282 240 3,838
1995-96 333 342 318 345 322 330 318 324 29¢ 300 283 197 192 3,903
1996-97 332 357 325 335 347 332 343 3B25 331 309 305 301 272 4214
1997-98 336 397 346 330 313 346 3I30 346 322 335 327 326 0 4354
1988-99 321 398 380 339 340 313 351 325 3b5 334 348 297 202 4,405
PROJECTED

1299-00 370 511t 399 404 370 329 JIIT IG5 295 32 322 287 335 4645
200001 379 440 505 441 420 386 322 353 317 308 337 280 323 4812
2001-02 389 457 437 560 452 434 391 338 306 347 325 300 347 5083
200203 389 472 462 489 573 470 440 424 290 343 356 280 356 5354
2003-04 407 488 480 520 503 585 479 478 386 339 349 303 349 5676
2004-05 420 501 500 S48 536 529 609 523 433 433 334 294 399 6057
2005-06 425 522 516 572 573 570 546 £634 473 493 456 280 406 65,496
200607 438 532 541 594 6£02 611 594 602 603 547 518 403 407 6,992
200708 450 553 557 627 628 646 640 660 553 TOD 573 456 451 7494
ADDITIONAL HOUSING STARTS APPROVED BY CITY OR TOWNSHIPS PROJECTION

ACTUAL K 1 2 3 4 E 6 7. B 9 e 1 12 TOTAL
1992-93 301 331 287 278 27¢ 280 . 295 281 267 255 241 223 231 3,548
1993-94 285 339 297 290 285 291 272 305 291 260 260 240 212 3,627
1984-95 310 322 328 206 310 297 297 313 313 284 266 262 240 3,838
1985-26 333 342 3218 345 322 330 318 324 299 30C 283 197 192 3,903
1986-97 332 357 325 335 347 332 343 325 331 309 305 301 272 4214
1997-98 336 397 346 330 313 346 330 346 322 335 327 326 300 4354
1998-98 321 398 380 339 340 313 3B1 325 355 334 348 297 299 4,405
PROJECTED

1999-00 392 559 457 474 386 344 353 381 311 337 337 303 3\ 4,986
2000-01 405 493 583 528 501 418 | 338 389 334 325 352 297 341 5284
2001-02 418 522 523 678 552 537 440 353 323 364 340 318 364 5732
2002-03 432 545 564 €16 702 594 560 488 305 38 369 296 369 6,186
2003-04 443 569 596 673 642 756 623 620 488 350 360 319 3B 6,769
2004-05 481 592 631 719 704 705 798 694 578 520 345 310 407 7,464
2005-08 470 624 B63 TE9 V777 Y86 755 BBY 648 663 555 206 412 8307
2008-07 489 645 VQY B15 B32 870 B854 853 833 783 704 508 410 9,273
200708 E04A 678 733 978 B36 938  94B 976 811 974 T99 640 448 10,220

Source: Lebanon City School District Records., 106
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO

TABLE 15

LEVY HISTORY
Date of
Election Type of Issue Mills For Against % For
11/05/74 Bond lssue 3.40 2,016 2,843 41.49%
11/04/75 Bond Issue 320 2,056 2,255 47.69%
03/08/76 Bond lssue 3.20 1,292 1,338 49.16%
06/08/76 Emergency QOperating 3.70 2,108 1,037 67.03%
11/02/76 Emergency Operating 5.00 3,078 2,937 51.17%
06/06/78 Capital Projects - 5 year 4.80 837 ™ 54.42%
06/03/80 Emergency Operating 5.30 1,789 1,929 48.12%
08/08/80 Emergency Cparating 5.30 894 1,389 39.16%
11/04/80 Emergency Operating 5.30 1,654 877 B5.35%
11/08/83 Capital Projects - 5 year 280 3,254 1,952 B82.50%
11/08/88 Capital Projects - 5 year 230 5,053 2,318 68.55%
06/02/92 Bond Issue 422 2,285 1.879 54.89%
11/02/83 Capital Projects - 5 year 1.80 3,147 1,818 66.04%
05/03/94 Cantinuing Operating 8.50 1,967 1,980 492.84%
08/02/04 Continuing Operating 8.50 2,735 2,135 56.16%
11/05/96 Bond Issue 9.75 3,863 5,773 40.70%
08/06/97 Bond Issue 626 1,880 3,132 37.63%
05/05/98 Continuing Capital Projects 2,60 2,261 2,488 47.80%
11/03/98 Capital Projacts « 5 year 2.00 4,453 3,662 54.74%
0s/04/89 Qperating - 5 year 3.52 1,872 1,763 51.50%
t
Source: Lebanon City School District Records.
LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, OHIO TABLE 16
DEMCGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS
Unemployment Unemployment
Warran County Lebanon City Schoot Raw Rate
‘fear Population (1) Population (1) Entolimamnt (2)  Warren County (3)  State of Ohlo (3)
1899 113,908 10,423 4,405 3.20% 4.50%
1998 113,809 10,423 4,354 2.60% 4.40%
1897 113,909 10,423 4,214 2.60% 4.50%
1986 113,909 10,423 3,988 3.90% 5.00%
1985 113,909 10,423 3,842 £20% 4,80%
1994 113,509 10,423 3,692 4.90% 5.40%
1993 113,909 10,423 3,536 5.70% £.680%
1992 113,809 10,423 3,408 6.50% 7.60%
1991 113,209 10,423 3,318 5.80% 6.40%
1990 113,909 10,423 3,246 4.80% 570%
Sources:

{1} 1880 Census and 1990 Census.

{2} Lebanon Gity School District Racards.

{3) Chic Bureau Employmant Sarvices; Priar years' amounts have been restated to reflect current available information.
Pata for 1999 based upon June.
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LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, CHIO
MISCELLANECUS STATISTICAL DATA

Year of Present Charter:

Form of Government:

Area of District:

Fuil-time Equivalent Certificated Staff

TABLE 17

1967

Public School District
Five member Board of Education

81.9 Sguare Miles

281.62

Full-time Equivalent Classified Staff 160.61
Full-time Equivalent Total Staff 44223
Number of Certificated Siaff with Advanced Degrees 118.00
School Buiiding Address Principal Grades Enroliment
Francis Dunlavy Eiementary School 501 North Water Street Mr. Ken Williams 1-3 372
Alfred Holbrook Elementary School 700 Holbrook Avenue Mrs, Becky Hill K-3 639
Louisa Wright Elementary School 800 South East Street Mr. Charlie Little 1-3 432
Donovan Intermediate School 401 Justice Drive ir. Mike McClusky 4-5 653
Lucile Berry Middle School 23 Qakwood Avenue Mrs, Kathy Diblasi-Ward 6-8 1031
Lebanon High School 160 Miiler Road Dr. Samuel Ison 9-12 1,278
4,405

e e

LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT VISION STATEMENT:

Lebanon City Schools will become the educational leader in Ohio, known for having the most stimulating and
supportive learning environment that enables students to effectively transition throughout their lives.

LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT MISSION STATEMENT:

We are committed to providing:
* a diversity of programs for our students
* an excellent and inhovative staff who reflect the values of our community
“ a safe, clean and caring leaming environment
life-long skills that lead to the development of each student’s potential
an educational system of which all comrmunity tnembers can be proud
the opportunity for parent and family involvement.

*
L]
Ll

Source: Lebanon City School District Records and Lebanon City School District Strategic Plan.
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Report on compliance and on internal control over financial reporting
based on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

December 21, 1999

Board of Education
Lebanon City School District

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Lebanon City School District,
(the District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon
dated December 21, 1999. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtalning reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-
compliance required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Qver Financial Reportin
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing pracedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion

on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial
reporting,

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the
internal conirol components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements
in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur
and not be detected within a timely period by empioyees in the normai course of performing their
assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be
material weaknesses. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting
and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.



This report is intended for the information of management, the Auditor of State, Board of
Education, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these spec1ﬁed partles

Tr hy st e

Plattenburg & Associates, Inc.
Certified Public Accountants
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Report on compliance with requirements applicable to each major program and internal
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133

December 21, 1999

Board of Education
Lebanon City School District

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the District with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S. Office of Mandgement and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program for the year énded June 30, 1999.
The District’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results portion of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirementis
of laws, regulation, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the
responsibility of the District’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
District’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence about the District’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Qur audit does not provide a legal
determination on the District’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 1999.



In lianc
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The management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable
to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance
with OMB Circular A-133. ‘ -

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components
does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation _to a
major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses. : : o

c I nditu

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the District as of and for the year
ended June 30, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated December 21, 1999. Our audit
was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements of
the District taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of federal awards expenditures is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a
required part of the general purpose financial statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in
our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended for the information of management, Board of Education, the Auditor of
State, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these speclﬁed partles

Platienburg & Associates, Inc
Certified Public Accountants



LEBANON CITY SCHOGL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED June 30, 1999

Federal Grant/ Pass Through Federal
Pass Through Grantor Entity CEDA Non-Cash Non-Cash
Program Title Number  _Number _ Receipls _ Rece1pts Disbursements __Disbursement

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed Tnrough Ohio Department of Education: - -

Nutrition Cluster:

Food Distribution Program 03-PU 10.550 $0 $50,551 30 $44,346

National School Lunch Progrant 04-PU 10.555 193,505 0 193,504 0

Special Milk Program 02-PU 10.556 6,018 0o _ 6018 9,,,, _
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture - Nutrition Cluster 199,323 _ 50,55} _ 19_9,522- £ - M, 3:6 )
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed Through Ohio Department of Education:

Special Education Cluster:

Title VI - B Grant ’ 6B-SF 84.027 139,986 0 146,621 ¢

Preschool Grant PG-51 84.173 3,549 0 . 8.7 87 ¢
Total Special Education Cluster 143,335 7 ,‘O - ) 155,408 A 0_

Eisenhower Grant MS-51 84.281 14,997 V 4} o 10‘,598- 0

Title I Grant C1-50 84.010 264,105 0 287,270 0

Title VI C2-51 84.298 16,696 D 20,153 0

Drug Free Schools Grant DR-S1 84.186 19,222 0 10,978 0

Goals 2000 G2-52 84.276 0 0 3269 0 )
Totzal Department of Education 458,555 0 o 487 ,t‘é‘(G 0
U.8. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR N
Employment Services and Job Training, Pilot, and Defnonstration Programs

School to Work Grant n/a 17.249 11,469 0 10,086 0
Total Departrment of Labor 11,469 0 IQ,D&G » 0 ‘
Total Federal Assjstance $669,547 $50,551 $697,284 $44,3.46 7

NOQTES TO SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
NOTE A -- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying schedule of federal awards expendifures is a summa:y of the activity of the District's federal award programs. The schedule
has been prepared on the cash basis of accounting. :

NOTE B -- FOOD DISTRIBUTION

Nonmonetary assistance is reporied in the schedule at the fair market value of the commodities recewed and dxsbursed Monies are camtmngled
with state grants, and it is assumed that federal monies are expended first,



LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
JUNE 30, 1999

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
OMBE CIRCULAR A-133 SECTION .505

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS
(A1) Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unqualified
(d)}1){ii) Were there any material control weakness No
conditions reported at the financinl
statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)1)(ii) Were there any reportable control weakness No
conditions reported at the financial

statement level (GAGAS)?

(d)(I)(iii) Was there any reported material non-compliance No
at the financial stafement level (GAGAS)?

(d)(1)(iv) Were there any material internal control No
weakness conditions reported for major o
federal programs?
(d)(1)iv) Were the any other reportable internal control No
weakness conditions reported for major
Sfederal programs?
(d)(1)v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance Opinion Unqualified
(di(1)(vi) Are there any reportable findings under No
Section 5107
()(1)(vii) Major Programs (list). Title 1

(d)(1)(viii) Dollar Threshold: Type A/B Programs Type A: > $300,000
- Type B: all others

(d)(1)(ix) Low Risk Auditee? Yes

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDAN CE WITH GAGAS

None Noted
3, FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None Noted



LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
JUNE 30, 1999

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT AND QUESTIONED COSTS
OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Lebanon City School District had no prior audit findings or questioned costs.



88 East Broad Street

P.O. Box 1140

STATE OF OHIO Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Telephone 614-466-4514
800-282-0370

JimM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE

Facsimile 614-466-4490

LEBANON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

WARREN COUNTY

CLERK’S CERTIFICATION

This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office of the
Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed in Columbus,
Ohio.

- JAN 25 2000
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